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Minutes: You may make reference to "attached testimony." 

Vice Chairman Owens opened the hearing on HB 1205. 

Representative Gary Paur, District 19, introduced HB 1205. He provided a handout, 
"License Plates", and an amendment. See attachments 1-2. He stated that HB 1205 has 
to do with the removal of a small number of fees on Veteran's license plates. He has 
received some complaints about the fees on Veteran's plates. One was from the mother of 
a Purple Heart recipient and the other from a Viet Nam Veteran, who has seen some heavy 
service. 

Representative Gary Paur: I took my concerns to Lonnie Wangan, Commissioner of 
North Dakota Department of Veteran's Affairs, and he took my quire to the North Dakota 
Veteran's Coordinating Council and the Administrative Council on Veteran's Affairs . Their 
recommendations are what you see in this bill. It removes the requirement for small fees 
for those that have paid most dearly for service. It would include the tess for the 
maintenance of the cemetery. That should be our project, not those who are 100% 
disabled, etc. 

There is a heavy fiscal note with the bill. I think that Legislative Management 
misunderstood what we were intending, so that is the purpose of the amendment. (See 
attachment #2) The amendment asks for deletions of sections that we did not request be 
put in . I think those sections are what precipitated the very large fiscal note. I believe the 
impact will be very minimal. 

I sent this to the National Guard. General Spry is in support of this. He says that they can 
make up the loss to the National Cemetery out of current funds. (6:06) 

Representative Gruchella, District 45, spoke to support HB 1205. He feels that eliminating 
these fees would be something else we can do to recognize the veterans. 

Lonnie Wongan, North Dakota Veterans Affairs: On page 1, the first part of the bill, it 
refers to the Gold Star Plate and the Prisoner of War plate. The feeling is that these people 
have already given enough. They have lost a loved one or spent time in a prison camp. 
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We don't think it is necessary that they should pay to have that special plate. We visited 
with the organizations involved , and the cost to the cemetery would be very minimal on this 
and would be able to be made up elsewhere. 

The second part of the bill gives veterans that are 100% disabled the right to a license plate 
with a $5.00 fee and waives the registration fee for their vehicle. We do have veterans who 
are 100% disabled who would like to have their Purple Heart on their plate. This would be 
a nice thing to do for them without having to pay for registration, since they are eligible for 
both. Some don't want the DAV plate, but just a plate that says that they served. They will 
be able to choose which plate they want. 

There is clean up on the last page. (15:08) 

Representative Drovdal: Is this restricted to just one vehicle per person? 

Lonnie Wangan: Right now a person can have two DAV plates, one for the veteran and 
the spouse. We are asking that the unmarried spouse be able to retain the plate when the 
veteran passes away. A POW now is allowed to have one plate, and we are also asking 
that the spouse may retain the plate if the POW has passed away, until she is married or 
passes away. 

Representative Gruchella: What about someone who is not 100% disabled , but later 
become 100% if something manifests itself into a more severe disability? 

Lonnie Wangan: Yes, when you become 100%, you would be qualified. 

Vice Chairman Owens: Would you explain the difference between 100% service 
connected and "extra scheduler rating"? 

Lonnie Wangan: 100% service connected is where the disabilities add up, using the VA 
math, so that all of the disabilities equal 100%. It takes five 50% disabilities to equal 100% 
disabled. If you have one disability that is 60%, and at least one of the others is 40% or 
higher, and you are considered unemployable because of this, it will be considered 100% 
using the "extra schedule rating" . 

Representative Becker: Could a veteran that has no disabilities when released from the 
service, become disabled by other means not related to service, and sti l l  fall under this type 
of thing? 

Lonnie Wangan: If you get a disability from falling at home, for instance, that would not be 
considered VA commensurable. 

Chairman Ruby: Have veterans complained about having to pay for the cemetery fund? 

Lonnie Wangan: There are some Gold Star and POW people that have called in concern. 
When we discussed this with our two associations, they felt that the people that fall under 
those two categories have already lost or paid enough. The $15 was almost an insult. It 
doesn't make that much of a contribution to the cemetery since there are so few plates. It is 
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something that we can give them because they have already paid enough. No one has 
complained about fees. We are just asking or the DAV's to have the option to have another 
type of plate. 

Chairman Ruby: Are there any issues with a plate having two distinctions on it? 

Lonnie Wangan: We are not asking to have a plate have a second emblem on it, just 
different plate. 

Representative Kreun: How many people do we have in the state that would qualify for 
the Gold Star plate? 

Lonnie Wangan: About 50. 

Nathan Goodiron, a Viet Nam Veteran, spoke to support HB 1205. He provided written 
testimony. See attachment #3. (24:43 - 28:35) 

Chairman Ruby: Thank you for your service and we are sorry for your loss. 

There was not further support for HB 1205. 
There was no opposition to HB 1205. 

Linda Sitz, Director of Motor Vehicle Division, North Dakota Department of 
Transportation, spoke in a neutral capacity on HB 1205. She provided written testimony. 
See attachment #4. 36:30 

There was discussion about the fiscal note and the misunderstanding as to what was being 
asked for in the bill. The fiscal note will be recalculated. 

Representative Gruchella: Will all these changes be moot, if the buffalo plates are 
replaced in the next biennium, as stated in SB 2326? 

Linda Sitz: I understand that the buffalo plate will be totally redone. If there are any 
organizational emblems on the plates, each one of those will have to be redone as well. 
The plate will have to change if the general issue changes. 

Representative Gruchella: Didn't we discuss last session to change from metal plates to 
the flat plates that can be printed by the computer? 

Linda Sitz: The difference that you are referring to is an embossed plate (an example was 
shown) with raised features, or a flat plate. The way I read the bill, it doesn't say that. It is 
a distinction that would have to be made when we get to that bill. 

Chairman Ruby: Currently the only plate that has a waiver for the $5.00 registration fee is 
the POW plate? 

Linda Sitz: Yes. 
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Chairman Ruby: How many plates would be added to that with this bill? 

Linda Sitz: Currently we have 1 ,300 plates that are already flagged for DAV plates that 
are already exempt. The bill talks about waiving the special letter plate fee of $25.00, but 
not the $5.00 registration. 

Representative Becker: I would like to make sure that this bill is not incurring costs, and 
then six months later those are all wiped out because of a new bill, and the costs will be 
repeated. Do you see that as a potential concern? 

Linda Sitz: All changes would go into effect July 1 5t. So, if this bill passes, we would make 
sure that everything that is passed is effective at that time. 

There was no further testimony on HB 1 205 . 
The hearing on HB 1205 was closed. 
The bill will be held for further discussion and to see the new fiscal note. 
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Chairman Ruby brought HB 1205 back before the committee. 

Linda Sitz, Director of Motor Vehicle: We didn't change this bill much. We just took 
$1500 off the fiscal note. 

Chairman Ruby: Does the first section deal with the personalized plates for the POW and 
GOLD STAR plates? Is that normally a $25 charge? 

Linda Sitz: That is correct. We only have 54 GOLD STAR plates, 45 of those are special 
letter plates. We have 24 POW plates and none of those are special letter plates. We 
calculated out about $3,400 that would be lost revenue per biennium. 

Chairman Ruby: Where does the $25 go to? 

Linda Sitz: That is normally split between the Highway Tax Distribution Fund and that 
organization. 

Chairman Ruby: Are we talking about the emblem plates that would have an organization 
attached , or are we talking about plates where someone wants a clever saying on them? It 
isn't necessarily going toward any organization? 

Linda Sitz: This is an example of what they are talking about. (displayed a GOLD STAR 
plate) There is a charge for these plates, and when it is paid, $1 0 goes toward the 
Highway Tax Distribution Fund , and the rest is split out into the Veteran's Cemetery and the 
Veteran's Maintenance Fund. It is a fundraiser, per se, for the veteran's fund . You still can 
have your name on it for an extra fee. That is what they want to waive. 

Representative Weisz: We are not talking about the plate itself, but the vanity part of it, 
correct? 

Linda Sitz: Yes. 
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Chairman Ruby: It removes the $15 and the split that it had. It removed the annual 
surcharge of $10. 

Representative Vigesaa: We think that could be the title fee of $5. That is a fee required 
under registration, and we weren't doing anything with that fee. 

Linda Sitz: That is correct. 

Vice Chairman Owens: Is there something different about our POW plate? 

Linda Sitz: (Showed the POW plate.) 

Vice Chairman Owens: It is not like the emblem plates that have an initial $15 charge? 

Linda Sitz: No, it just has a $5 fee. 

Chairman Ruby: Is that considered a special issue plate because it is so different from our 
buffalo plate? 

Linda Sitz: In order to obtain this plate you have to have been a prisoner of war. All of the 
plates are made out special. It is totally different. We only have 24 of these out. 

Chairman Ruby: Section 3 deals with the disabled veteran's plate. It also includes the 
POW plate. 

Representative Weisz: Is the vast majority of the fiscal note based on Section 3? 

Linda Sitz: Yes. Our understanding of what they are trying to attempt in Section 3 is to 
allow those veterans that are 1 00% disabled to have that tax and registration exemption on 
any of these veteran type plates. Normally a DAV (disabled American veteran) plate has 
DAV on it. The law says, " . . .  a distinctive license plate issued by the department." So, 
these are the plates. This is just one example of them. 

Representative Weisz: Is this a decal on a standard issue plate, unlike our POW plate? 

Linda Sitz: Yes. 

Vice Chairman Owens: We received a recommended amendment from the bill's sponsor 
that cuts out the part that everyone is discussing right now. See amendment. I thought we 
had discussed this before. 

Chairman Ruby: Does any of that change if we adopt these amendments? 

Linda Sitz: The way that we read the bill, the section that they took out was specifically 
talking about the POW plates. So, we thought they wanted us to use the POW plate and 
for each section of the armed forces recreate the plate. To do that we would have to create 
a whole new plate because this is not a sticker. That is $1500 each time we change the 
set-up of these plates. 



House Transportation Committee 
HB 1205 
02-07-1 3  
Page 3 

Vice Chairman Owens: If we delete that with this amendment, will it greatly ease the 
fiscal note? 

Linda Sitz: We took that to be just this one section where it specifically talks about the 
decal on page 4, lines 8-12. That didn't change anything on page 3, where it asks us to tell 
our system to give the DAV exemption to any of these veteran type plates for those 
individuals who are 100% disabled. 

Chairman Ruby: Would any of that change if we adopt the amendments? 

Linda Sitz: The only thing that would change with the adoption of the amendments is that 
we wouldn't have to charge the $1500 for creating the POW plate with those decals. 
Everything else on page 3, we would still have to do. 

Vice Chairman Owens moved a DO PASS on the amendments on HB 1 205 that were 
provided by the sponsor. 
Representative Drovdal seconded the motion. 
A voice vote was taken. All aye. The motion carried. (Vote 1 )  

Representative Weisz: I would like to amend this to lessen the cost. There are some 
possibilities. 

The cost of the bill and ways to make it cost less was discussed. (25:00) 

Representative Becker: I have trouble seeing how it would cost $8,400 to train for this. 
Can't you just send out a memo? Can you give me more information, so I can understand 
why that is? 

Linda Sitz: Our vehicle registration system is very old. Because we are going to be 
changing a process to acknowledge DAV benefits for plates that are not labeled DAV, it is 
not a distinctive plate. It is training. We have 20 branch offices; each has individual 
contracted employees, so they are not state employees. It is the 45 people internally that 
have to be trained as well as all the branch offices. It really isn't something that we can just 
send out an e-mail. The system is not an easy system to follow. 

There was additional discussion on the wording "exemption" in the bill. 

Linda Sitz: When the veteran is alive they get two plates which are veterans. Upon the 
death of the veteran, that spouse (unmarried) retains that plate. The cost is related to the 
fact that this is a new section of law that we are writing, according to this. All of the 
programing would be related to that cost. The bill is changing to give that Disabled 
American Veteran the benefit of having this on a veteran's plate. That is a total changing of 
our system. Under the current law the spouse would retain the DAV plate. 

Linda Sitz: This section is reprograming our system to allow the 100% disabled veteran to 
get the DAV benefit on any veteran's plate. 
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Representative Weisz: The 1 00% disabled veteran has two options under this bill. He 
can take a DAV plate or a regular North Dakota veteran's plate. The either/or option will 
have to be programmed and that is the problem? 

Linda Sitz: That is correct. 

Representative Becker: There are two components in the bill. One is that the veterans 
feel that because of their great commitment that they have made, they shouldn't be 
charged these fees nor should their surviving spouse. The other part is that they want to 
be able to combine what currently are choices: DAV or service veteran's plate, POW or 
veteran's plate. It is because of combining the two that we have all of the extra cost for 
programing and training. Could we discuss an amendment to acknowledge their service 
and not charge them at all, but still continue to look at two choices? 

Chairman Ruby: You can get a veteran's plate and not be disabled. I don't think that we 
want to give everyone who served in the military a free plate. That is where we will have 
the distinction of a veteran plate that people are being charged for, and a veteran plate 
where they qualify for disabled veterans. 

Representative Weisz suggested amendments. (See amendments) He explained the 
changes. 

Chairman Ruby: It will leave them with a DAV plate, and it would be free. 

Linda Sitz: Some of what you are taking out is the part where the surviving spouse doesn't 
get the POW plate. Currently they don't get the POW part of it, so that might be something 
that you want to leave in. 

Representative Weisz: Will that cause you any major programming issues? 

Linda Sitz: That shouldn't be a problem. 

Representative Gruchella : If it helps anyone, the original intent of the bill was to get rid of 
the $5.00 fee, and that is happening. 

Representative Weisz moved a DO PASS on the amendments. 
Representative Becker seconded the motion. 
A voice vote was taken. All aye. The motion carried. 

Chairman Ruby we would obviously request a new fiscal note. We may not need a motion 
for rereferral because we are anticipating the new fiscal note will be lower. If it comes in 
higher we will have to rerefer it on the floor. 

Representative Weisz moved a DO PASS as amended on HB 1205. 
Representative Delmore seconded the motion. 

Question has been called. 
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A voice vote was taken. Aye 1 2  Nay 0 Absent 2 
The motion carried. 
Representative Vigesaa will carry HB 1205. 



ill/Resolution No. :  H B  1205 

FISCAL NOTE 
Requested by Legislative Council 

01/15/20 1 3  

1 A. State fiscal effect: Identify the state fiscal effect and the fiscal effect on agency appropriations compared to funding 
1 1 d ·r r ·  t d  d t l  eve s an appropna tons an tctpa e un er curren aw. 

2011-2013 Biennium 2013-2015 Biennium 

General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds 

Revenues 

Expenditures $107,500 

Appropriations $107,500 

2015-2017 Biennium 

General Fund Other Funds 

1 B. County, city, school d istrict and township fiscal effect: Identify the fiscal effect on the appropriate political 
subdivision 

2011-2013 Biennium 2013-2015 Biennium 2015-2017 Biennium 

Counties 

Cities 

School Districts 

Townships 

2 A. Bill and fiscal impact summary: Provide a brief summary of the measure, including description of the provisions 
having fiscal impact (limited to 300 characters). 

This bill reduces the fees associated with Gold Star, POW, and DAV license plates. 

B. Fiscal i mpact sections: Identify and provide a brief description of the sections of the measure which have fiscal 
impact. Include any assumptions and comments relevant to the analysis. 

While it is not possible to fully determine the impact this bill will have on reven ues, we believe any resulting revenue 
loss will be relatively minor. However, the bill will have a fairly significant  impact o n  N D DOT expenditures and 
appropriations due to significan t  costs for computer reprogramming, training, printing,  web site changes, decal 
development, and additional temporary staffing that will be necessary to implement the provisions of this bill. 

3. State fiscal effect detail: For information shown under state fiscal effect in 1A, please: 

A. Revenues: Explain the revenue amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each revenue type and fund 
affected and any amounts included in the executive budget. 

While we cannot fully determine the impact that this bill will have on reven ues, it is likely that it will result in a fairly 
minor loss of revenue to the Highway Tax Distribution Fund, the Veteran's Cemetery Trust Fund, and the Veteran's 
Cemetery Maintenance Fund.  We can estimate the revenue impact for section 1 as (24 POW plates + 45 Gold Star 
plates) X $25 per year X 2 years per biennium for a total revenue loss of $3,450 per biennium. This loss would 
impact the Highway Tax Distribution Fund. We can estimate the revenue impact for section 2 as (20 Gold Star plates 
per biennium X $15 initial one-time fee)+ (20 Gold Star plates per biennium X $10 annual surcharge X 2 years per 
biennium) = $700 per biennium. The distribution of this loss is $200 to the Highway Tax Distribution Fund, $300 to 
the Veteran's Cemetery Maintenance Fund, and $200 to the Veteran's Cemetery Trust Fund. It is not possible to 
fully determine the revenue impact for section 3 as we have no way to determine the extent that disabled veterans 
currently using the regular buffalo p late will choose to utilize the DAV registration and excise tax exemption.  While 
not certain, it is likely that this impact wou ld also be minimal. 



B. Expenditures: Explain the expenditure amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency, line item, and 
fund affected and the number of FTE positions affected. 

The estimated costs associated with this bi l l  for the first biennium include computer reprogramming ($12,000), web
site changes ($5,000), temporary staffing to cover basic operations while full time staff is involved with central and 
branch office training and program u pdate efforts ($84,000), and printing ($5,000), and decal development ($1,500) 
for a total first bienn ium cost of $107,500. Subsequent bienn ium costs wou ld be minimal. 

C.  Appropriations: Explain the appropriation amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency and fund 
affected. Explain the relationship between the amounts shown for expenditures and appropriations. Indicate whether 
the appropriation is a/so included in the executive budget or relates to a continuing appropriation. 

N DDOT has not i ncluded any costs associated with this bi l l  in its 2013-2015 biennium budget request. Accordingly, 
an additional appropriation of $107,500 would be necessary for the 2013-2015 bienn ium. 

Name: Shannon L. Sauer 

Agency: NDDOT 

Telephone: 328-4375 

Date P repared: 01/21/2013 
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PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO HOUSE B I LL NO. 1205 

Page 3, l ine 21, remove "or a N orth Dakota veteran's l icense plate" 

Page 3, remove l ines 22 through 24 

Page 3, l ine 25, remove "qualified under this subdivision for one veh icle" 

Page 4, l ine 1, overstrike "upon the payment of five" 

Page 4, l ine 2, overstrike "dollars" 

Page 4, l ine 2, remove "or a N o rth Dakota veteran's l icense plate at no charge" 

Page 4, l ine 8, remove " In addi tion,  a former prisoner of war is" 

Page 4, remove l ine 9 

Page 4, l ine 10, remove "placement on a prisoner of war number plate at no charge . "  

Page 4 ,  l ine 11, remove "and i s  receivin g  department of" 

Page 4, l ine 12, remove "veterans' affairs dependency and indemnity com pensation" 

Ren u m ber accord ingly 

P age No.1 
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2013 HOUSE STANDING COMMITTEE 
ROLL CALL VOTES 

BILL/RESOLUTION NO. /0\ 0C) =· 

House Transportation 

0 Check here for Conference Committee 

Legis lative Cou ncil Amendment N umber 

Action Taken:  0 Do Pass 0 Do Not Pass 0 Amended � Adopt 
Amendment 

0 Rerefer to Appropriations . 0 Reconsider 

Motion Made By -fA. t--e.N\_..4-- Seconded By /DJL.-flJ--
f1tyy_/�(AT � () M ·fL� c.rvnn�j 

Representatives Yes No Re_prese_fttatives 
Chairman Dan Ruby Rep. Lois Delmore 
Vice Chairman Mark Owens Rep. Edmund Gruchal la 
Rep. Rick Becker Rep. Kylie Oversen 
Rep. David D rovdal  
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-
Rep. Brenda Hel ler {i )� ./ � 
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/ v 
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,. 

Yes N o  

Total (Yes) ---------- N o  --------------

Absent 

Flo o r  Assignment / 
I f  the vote is on an amendmZriefly indicate intent: 
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Hou se Transportation Comm i ttee 

D Check here for Conference Committee 

Legislative Council  Amendment N u m ber 

Action Taken :  D Do Pass D Do Not Pass D Amended �Adopt 
Amendment 
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Motion M ade By 
- -

-A- VY\ tJtA A 
Reflresentatives 

Chairman Dan Ruby 
Vice Chairman Mark Owens 
Rep. Rick Becker 
Rep. David Drovdal  
Rep. Robert Frantsvog 
Rep. Brenda Heller 
Rep. Curtiss Kreun 
Rep. Mike Schatz 
Rep_. Gar)'_ Suku t  
Rep.  Don Vigesaa 
Rep. Robin Weisz 

Seconded By 
0. •' 
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Yes No Representatives 

Rep. Lois Delmore 
Rep. Edmund Grucha lla 
Rep. Kylie Oversen 

-
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If the vote is on an  amendment, briefly indicate intent: 
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ROLL CALL VOTES 

BILL/RESOLUTION NO. I� 0 5 ' 

Hou se Transportation 

D Check here for Conference Committee 

Legis lative Council  Amendment N umber 

Action Taken:  [)Z1 Do Pass D Do Not Pass ,:[! Amended D Adopt 
Amendment 

0 Rerefer to Appropriations 0 Reconsider 
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Com Standing Committee Report 
February 8, 2013 12:54pm 

Module ID: h_stcomrep_24_019 
Carrier: Vigesaa 

Insert LC: 13.0296.02001 Title: 03000 

REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE 
HB 1205: Transportation Committee (Rep. Ruby, Chairman) recommends 

AMENDMENTS AS FOLLOWS and when so amended, recommends DO PASS 
and BE REREFERRED to the Appropriations Committee ( 1 2  YEAS, 0 NAYS, 
2 ABSENT AND N OT VOTI NG). H B  1 205 was placed on the Sixth order on the 
calendar. 

Page 3, line 2 1 ,  remove "or a North Dakota veteran's license plate" 

Page 3, remove lines 22 through 24 

Page 3, l ine 25, remove "qualified under this subdivision for one vehicle" 

Page 4, line 1 ,  overstrike "upon the payment of five" 

Page 4, line 2, overstrike "dollars" 

Page 4, line 2, remove "or a North Dakota veteran's license plate at no charge" 

Page 4, line 8, remove "In add ition. a former prisoner of war is" 

Page 4, remove line 9 

Page 4, l ine 1 0, remove "placement on a prisoner of war number plate at no charge . "  

Page 4, line 1 1 ,  remove "and i s  receiving department of' 

Page 4, line 1 2, remove "veterans' affairs dependency and indemnity compensation" 

Renumber accord ingly 

(1) DESK (3) COMMITIEE Page 1 h_stcomrep_24_019 
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Senate Transportation Committee 
Lewis and Clark Room, State Capitol 

HB 1205 
03/08/2013 

Recording job number 19635 

D Conference Committee 

Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 
Relating to removal of extra fees for number plates for certain veterans 

Minutes: 

Representative Gary Paur, District 19, prime sponsor of HB 1205 
This bill removes the extra fees for the Gold Star, Prisoner of War and Disabled American 
Veteran license plates. Written testimony# 1 

Brenda Bergsrud, North Dakota Department of Veterans Affairs, read testimony from 
Commissioner Lonnie Wangen. Two of the intents of this bill have been removed with 
amendments. Allowing 100% disabled veterans to choose another veteran's plate while 
retaining a registration fee exemption and allowing an unmarried surviving spouse of a 
100% disabled veteran to retain one of the two authorized license plates and retain the 
exemption. A 100% disabled veteran is eligible for the distinctive disabled veteran license 
plate. This plate is a standard North Dakota license plate; it has DAV and a number 
following it. In some instances a 100% disabled veteran may also be a Purple Heart 
recipient. If he/she wanted to display the Purple Heart plate they would have to give up 
their registration exemption and pay the full price for the Purple Heart license plate. This 
situation also applies to 100% disabled veterans who also become eligible for a gold star 
plate. They may also want to display an organized specific veteran's plate such as the 
army, navy, marines, air force or coast guard. The 100% disabled veteran would pay the 
$15 initial and $10 annual fee to display one of these plates, which also support the North 
Dakota Veterans Cemetery, while retaining their registration exemption I ask you support 
HB 1205. 

Senator Sitte: You want specific amendments? 

Brenda Bergsrud: Lonnie wants the fee waived for the Purple Heart plates too 

Rep Paur read from fiscal note dated 1/15/13 Number 3 A, stating that the impact this bill 
will have on revenues likely will result in a fairly minor loss of revenue. 

No other testimony in favor. Neutral testimony 



Senate Transportation Committee 
HB 1205 
03/08/2013 
Page 2 

Linda Sitz, Director Motor Vehicle Division North Dakota Department of Transportation 
(DOT) Written testimony #2 highlighting the two things changed by this bill: 1st the 
requirement of paying twenty-five dollars for a Special Letter Plates if it is a Gold Star or 
Prisoner of War (POW) plate; 2nd the removal of the fee of five dollars for the distinctive 
license plate (DAV) and allows the surviving not remarried spouse of a former prisoner of 
war to retain the exemption of the deceased veteran. 

Chairman Oehlke: When the new plates are generated, does North Dakota Department of 
Transportation (DOT) take care of that or the different organizations have to submit 
artwork, templates, how does that work? 

Linda Sitz: When an organization wants an organizational plate they submit $1500 and fifty 
applications and we give it to Rough Rider Industries to create that plate. 

Chairman Oehlke: If there is already a plate existing, do they have to go through the 
process again or is there a carryover? 

Linda Sitz: we have not discussed yet how we are going to do it. We assume we are going 
to create a brand new background of the plate. We are going to create an ad hoc 
committee with the different interest groups. 

Chairman Oehlke: as far as this bill goes it doesn't make any difference anyway? 

Linda Sitz: it would affect the POW plates, a different color than our regular plate, it would 
not change the other plates; they have talked about the DAV plate, the background would 
change. It would have no additional cost. 

Senator Flakoll: In the 2/11/13 fiscal note: other funds: expenditures $9,000. 
Appropriations: other funds: $9,000 Where does that come from? Is it in another bill 
somewhere? 

Linda Sitz: Because this isn't in the budget we assume the expenditures would come out 
of appropriations. $9000 is the cost for the website changes and the printing (3 B 
expenditures in the fiscal note). The $3,450 do not affect North Dakota Department of 
Transportation (DOT) they affect more the veterans side. 

No additional testimony Hearing closed 



2013 SENATE STANDING COMMITTEE MINUTES 

Senate Transportation Committee 
Lewis and Clark Room, State Capitol 

HB 1205 
3/22/2013 

Recording job number 20360 

D Conference Committee 

Committee Clerk Signature J!)!j(J 
Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 
Relating to the removal of extra fees for number plates for certain veterans. 

Minutes: Attached testimony 

Chairman Oehlke: opened the discussion on HB 1205. The amendment you have in front 
of you, 13.0296.03002, is the House amendment but it is one that does help solve that 
problem and I have been assured of that by our intern who double checked with John 
Walstad. 

Senator Sitte: We were looking for an amendment to waive the fee for Purple Heart 
Plates, is that what this is all about? This amendment says "the director shall issue four 
patriotic logos" isn't one of them the Purple Heart? In my notes we are talking about the 
Gold Star, Prisoner of War and Disabled American Veteran license plates. 

Senator Flakoll I believe that Lonnie requested that but my understanding is that it was 
kind of a budget buster. I am somewhat irked because I requested amendments from 
Justin last week and I haven't seen them yet. 

Chairman Oehlke: we will hold this off until next week. Meeting adjourned 



2013 SENATE STANDING COMMITTEE MINUTES 

Senate Transportation Committee 
Lewis and Clark Room, State Capitol 

HB 1205 
3/28/201 3  

Recording job number 20638 

D Conference Committee 

Comm ittee Clerk Signature �� 
Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 
Relating to the removal of extra fees for number plates for certain veterans 

Minutes: Attached testimony 1 

Chairman Oehlke opened the discussion on HB 1205 

Senator Flakoll The 3/28/1 3  amendment, drafted by Justin (Hagel, Intern), provides 
$3500, so the organizations don't have to absorb the loss (attachment #1  ). Moved to 
adopt amendment 

Vice Chairman Armstrong seconded 

Voice vote Yes 7 No 0 Absent not voting 0 

Chairman Oehlke: we have the other amendment. 

Discussion followed regarding: legislative intent, further amending the House amendment, 
and the fact that the issue of disabled veterans plates might be already addressed 
somewhere else in the Code. Senator Sitte will visit with legislative council to clarify these 
issues. Senator Flakoll said that there might also be an issue with the Purple Heart 
plates, requested Lonnie (Wangen) be consulted or have him come and address the 
committee's questions. 

No further discussion, meeting adjourned. 



2013 SENATE STANDING COMMITTEE MINUTES 

Senate Transportation Committee 
Lewis and Clark Room, State Capitol 

HB 1205 
3/29/2013 

Recording job number 20666 

D Conference Committee 

Committee Clerk Signature {) � 
Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 
Relating to removal of extra fees for number plates for certain veterans 

Minutes: 

Chairman Oehlke opened the discussion on HB 1205 

Senator Axness moved to adopt amendment 13.0296.03002 (attachment #1) 

Senator Sitte seconded 

Discussion followed regarding the fiscal note. 

Voice vote: Yes 7 No 0 Absent not voting 0 

Senator Sitte moved DO PASS on HB 1205 as amended twice and re-refer to 
appropriations 

Senator Sinner seconded 

Discussion followed the number of Purple Heart recipients and how this would affect fiscal 
note 

Roll call vote: Yes 7 No 0 Absent not voting 0 

Carrier: Senator Axness 



Amendment to: HB 1205 

FISCAL NOTE 
Requested by Legislative Council 

0211112013 

1 A. State fiscal effect: Identify the state fiscal effect and the fiscal effect on agency appropriations compared to funding 
levels and appropriations anticipated under current law. 

2011-2013 Biennium 2013-2015 Biennium 2015-2017 Biennium 

General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds 

Revenues 

Expenditures $9,000 

Appropriations $9,000 

1 B. County, city, school district and township fiscal effect: Identify the fiscal effect on the appropriate political 
subdivision 

2011·2013 Biennium 2013-2015 Biennium 2015·2017 Biennium 

Counties 

Cities 

School Districts 

Townships 

2 A. Bill and fiscal impact summary: Provide a brief summary of the measure, including description of the provisions 
having fiscal impact (limited to 300 characters). 

· 

This bill reduces the fees associated with Gold Star, POW, and DAV license plates. 

B. Fiscal impact sections: Identify and provide a brief description of the sections of the measure which have fiscal 
impact. Include any assumptions and comments relevant to the analysis. 

While it is not possible to fully determine the impact this bill will have on revenues, we believe any resulting revenue 
loss will be relatively minor. However, the bill will have some impact on NDDOT expenditures and appropriations due 
to costs for computer reprogramming, printing, and web site changes that will be necessary to implement the 
provisions of this bill. 

3. State fiscal effect detail: For information shown under state fiscal effect in 1A, please: 

A. Revenues: Explain the revenue amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each revenue type and fund 
affected and any amounts included in the executive budget. 

While we cannot fully determine the impact that this bill will have on revenues, it is likely that it will result in a fairly 
minor loss of revenue to the Highway Tax Distribution Fund, the Veteran's Cemetery Trust Fund, and the Veteran's 
Cemetery Maintenance Fund. We can estimate the revenue impact for section 1 as (24 POW plates + 45 Gold Star 
plates) X $25 per year X 2 years per biennium for a total revenue loss of $3,450 per biennium. This loss would 
impact the Highway Tax Distribution Fund. We can estimate the revenue impact for section 2 as (20 Gold Star plates 
per biennium X $15  initial one-time fee)+ (20 Gold Star plates per biennium X $10 annual surcharge X 2 years per 
biennium) = $700 per biennium. The distribution of this loss is $200 to the Highway Tax Distribution Fund, $300 to 
the Veteran's Cemetery Maintenance Fund, and $200 to the Veteran's Cemetery Trust Fund. It is not possible to 
fully determine the revenue impact for section 3 as we have no way to determine the extent that disabled veterans 
currently using the regular buffalo plate will choose to utilize the DAV registration and excise tax exemption. While 
not certain, it is likely that this impact would also be minimal. 



B. Expenditures: Explain the expenditure amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency, line item, and 
fund affected and the number of FTE positions affected. 

The estimated costs associated with this bill for the first biennium include computer reprogramming ($4,000}, and 
web-site changes and printing($5,000), for a total first biennium cost of $9,000. Subsequent biennium costs would 
be minimal. 

C. Appropriations: Explain the appropriation amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency and fund 
affected. Explain the relationship between the amounts shown for expenditures and appropriations. Indicate whether 
the appropriation is also included in the executive budget or relates to a continuing appropriation. 

NDDOT has not included any costs associated with this bill in its 201 3-2015 biennium budget request. Accordingly, 
an additional appropriation of $9,000 would be necessary for the 201 3-2015 biennium. 

Name: Shannon L. Sauer 

Agency: NDDOT 

Telephone: 328-4375 

Date Prepared: 02/1 2/20 1 3  



Bill/Resolution No.: HB 1 205 

FISCAL NOTE 
Requested by Legislative Council 

01/15/2013 

1 A. State fiscal effect: Identify the state fiscal effect and the fiscal effect on agency appropriations compared to funding 
I d /eve s and appropriations anticipate under current law. 

2011-2013 Biennium 2013-2015 Biennium 2015-2017 Biennium 

General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds 

Revenues 

Expenditures $107,500 

Appropriations $1 07,500 

1 B. County, city, school district and township fiscal effect: Identify the fiscal effect on the appropriate political 
subdivision 

2011-2013 Biennium 2013-2015 Biennium 2015·2017 Biennium 

Counties 

Cities 

School Districts 

Townships 

2 A. Bill and fiscal impact s ummary: Provide a brief summary of the measure, including description of the provisions 
having fiscal impact (limited to 300 characters). 

This bill reduces the fees associated with Gold Star, POW, and DAV license plates. 

B. Fiscal impact sections: Identify and provide a brief description of the sections of the measure which have fiscal 
impact. Include any assumptions and comments relevant to the analysis. 

While it is not possible to fully determine the impact this bill will have on revenues, we believe any resulting revenue 
loss will be relatively minor. However, the bill will have a fairly significant impact on NDDOT expenditures and 
appropriations due to significant costs for computer reprogramming, training, printing, web site changes, decal 
development, and additional temporary staffing that will be necessary to implement the provisions of this bill. 

3. State fiscal effect detail: For information shown under state fiscal effect in 1A, please: 

A. Revenues: Explain the revenue amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each revenue type and fund 
affected and any amounts included in the executive budget. 

While we cannot fully determine the impact that this bill will have on revenues, it is likely that it will result in a fairly 
minor loss of revenue to the Highway Tax Distribution Fund, the Veteran's Cemetery Trust Fund, and the Veteran's 
Cemetery Maintenance Fund. We can estimate the revenue impact for section 1 as (24 POW plates + 45 Gold Star 
plates) X $25 per year X 2 years per biennium for a total revenue loss of $3,450 per biennium. This loss would 
impact the Highway Tax Distribution Fund. We can estimate the revenue impact for section 2 as (20 Gold Star plates 
per biennium X $15  initial one-time fee)+ (20 Gold Star plates per biennium X $10 annual surcharge X 2 years per 
biennium) = $700 per biennium. The distribution of this loss is $200 to the Highway Tax Distribution Fund, $300 to 
the Veteran's Cemetery Maintenance Fund, and $200 to the Veteran's Cemetery Trust Fund. It is not possible to 
fully determine the revenue impact for section 3 as we have no way to determine the extent that disabled veterans 
currently using the regular buffalo plate will choose to utilize the DAV registration and excise tax exemption. While 
not certain, it is likely that this impact would also be minimal. 



B. Expenditures: Explain the expenditure amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency, line item, and 
fund affected and the number of FTE positions affected. 

The estimated costs associated with this bill for the first biennium include computer reprogramming ($12,000), web
site changes ($5,000), temporary staffing to cover basic operations while full time staff is involved with central and 
branch office training and program update efforts ($84,000), and printing ($5,000), and decal development ($1,500) 
for a total first biennium cost of $107,500. Subsequent biennium costs would be minimal. 

C. Appropriations: Explain the appropriation amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency and fund 
affected. Explain the relationship between the amounts shown for expenditures and appropriations. Indicate whether 
the appropriation is also included in the executive budget or relates to a continuing appropriation. 

NO DOT has not included any costs associated with this bill in its 2013-2015 biennium budget request. Accordingly, 
an additional appropriation of $107,500 would be necessary for the 2013-2015 biennium. 

Name: Shannon L. Sauer 

Agency: NDDOT 

Telephone: 328-4375 

Date Prepared: 01/21/2013 



13.0296.03003 
Title. 04000 

Adopted by the Transportation Committee 1D 
March 29, 2013 1 Z,.CII J 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO ENGROSSED HOUSE BILL N O .  1205 

Page 1, line 1, after "Act" insert "to create and enact a new section to chapter 39-04 of the 
North Dakota Century Code, relating to patriotic logos on number plates;" 

Page 1, line 3, after "veterans" insert "; and to provide an appropriation" 

Page 4, after line 5, insert: 

"SECTION 4. A new section to chapter 39-04 of the North Dakota Century Code 
is created and enacted as follows: 

Patriotic logos . 

.1. The d irector shall issue four patriotic logos under this section upon 
receiving: 

� Payment of all other fees requi red under this cha pter for registration of 
a motor vehicle; 

� Payment of an in itial fee of twenty dollars of which the department 
shall deposit fifteen dollars in the highway tax distribution fund and 
pay five dol lars to the state treasurer; and 

� Payment of an annual surcharge of ten dollars which the department 
shall pay to the state treasurer. 

2. The department shall collect the in itial fees and the ann ual surcharges 
under this section. During each legislative session. the department shall 
report to the legislative assembly on the funds collected under this section.  
For funds payable to the state treasurer under subdivisions b and c of 
subsection 1. the department shall pay the funds monthly to the state 
treasurer, who with in ten days of receipt of the funds. shall deposit five 
dollars of each in itial fee and the annual surcharge in  the veterans' postwar 
trust fund to be added to the principal of the fund. The state treasurer shall 
invest the fund in the same manner as the state investment board is 
authorized to make investments. 

S ECTION 5. APPROPRIATION. There is appropriated out of any moneys in  the 
general  fund in the state treasury, not otherwise appropriated, the sum of $9,000, or so 
much of the sum as may be necessary, to the department of transportation for the 
purpose of issuing patriotic logos as provided for under section 4 of this Act, for the 
biennium beginning July 1, 2013, and ending June 30, 2015. 

SECTION 6. APPROPRIATION. There is appropriated out of any moneys in the 
general fund in  the state treasury, not otherwise appropriated, the sum of $3,500 or so 
much of the sum as may be necessary, to the adjutant general to be divided equally 
between the veterans' cemetery trust fund and veterans' cemetery maintenance fund 
for the biennium beginning July 1, 2013, and ending June 30, 2015." 

Renumber accordingly 

Page No. 1 13.0296.03003 



Renumber accordingly 

Page No. 2 13.0296.03003 
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Com Standing Committee Report 
April 1, 2013 10:17am 

Module ID: s_stcomrep_57 _004 
Carrier: Axness 

Insert LC: 13.0296.03003 Title: 04000 

REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE 
HB 1205, as engrossed : Transportation Committee (Sen. Oeh lke, Chairman) 

recommends AM ENDMENTS AS FOLLOWS and when so amended, recommends 
DO PASS and BE REREFERRED to the Appropriations Committee (7 YEAS, 
0 NAYS, 0 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING).  Engrossed HB 1 205 was placed on the 
Sixth order on the calendar. 

Page 1 ,  l ine 1, after "Act" insert "to create and enact a new section to chapter 39-04 of the 
North Dakota Century Code, relating to patriotic logos on number plates;" 

Page 1, l ine 3, after "veterans" insert " ;  and to provide an appropriation" 

Page 4, after l ine 5, insert: 

"SECTION 4. A new section to chapter 39-04 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is created and enacted as follows: 

Patriotic logos . 

.1. The director shall issue four patriotic logos under this section upon 
receiving: 

a.  Payment of all other fees required under this chapter for registration 
of a motor vehicle; 

.tL Payment of an in itial fee of twenty dollars of which the department 
shall deposit fifteen dol lars in  the highway tax d istribution fund and 
pay five dollars to the state treasurer; and 

� Payment of an annual surcharge of ten dollars which the department 
shall pay to the state treasurer. 

2. The department shall collect the in itial fees and the annual surcharges 
under this section. During each legislative session. the department shall 
report to the legislative assembly on the funds collected under this 
section. For funds payable to the state treasurer under subd ivisions b 
and c of subsection 1, the department shall pay the funds monthly to the 
state treasurer, who with in ten days of receipt of the funds, shall deposit 
five dollars of each in itial fee and the annual surcharge in  the veterans' 
postwar trust fund to be added to the principal of the fund. The state 
treasurer shall invest the fund in the same manner as the state 
investment board is authorized to make investments. 

SECTION 5. APPROPRIATION. There is appropriated out of any moneys in  
the general fund in the state treasury, not otherwise appropriated, the sum of $9,000, 
or so much of the sum as may be necessary, to the department of transportation for 
the purpose of issu ing patriotic logos as provided for under section 4 of this Act, for 
the biennium beginning J u ly 1, 2013, and ending June 30, 2015. 

SECTION 6. APPROPRIATION. There is appropriated out of any moneys in  
the general fund in the state treasury, not otherwise appropriated , the sum of $3, 500 
or so much of the sum as may be necessary, to the adjutant general to be divided 
equally between the veterans' cemetery trust fund and veterans' cemetery 
maintenance fund for the biennium beginning Ju ly 1 ,  2013, and ending J une 30, 
2015." 

Renumber accord ingly 

(1) DESK (3) COMMITTEE Page 1 s_stcomrep_57 _004 
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2013 SENATE STANDING COMMITTEE MINUTES 

Senate Appropriations Committee 
Harvest Room, State Capitol 

HB 1205 
April 5, 2013 
Job # 20925 

D Conference Committee 

i Committee Clerk Signature 7j(J� 
Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

A bill relating to patriotic logos on number plates 

Minutes: � Testimony attached # 1 

Chairman Holmberg opened the hearing on HB 1205. 

John Jacobsen, Legislative Committee of ND Veterans Coordinating Council testified 
in favor of HB 1205. Written testimony # 1 

Chairman Holmberg: The bill appropriates $3500 to the Adjutant General and $9000 to 
DOT for issuing plates. 

Senator O'Connell: Why not wait until the new plates come out in two years? 

Chairman Holmberg: Is this one of these plates with the medallion on the plate? 

John Jacobsen: I was informed that the patriotic plate's bill was killed in the House, that it 
would be attached to this bill. This bill would allow d isabled veterans to use their DAV plate 
for hand icapped parking. 

Chairman Holmberg: We'll have someone from DOT come over and explain it to us. 

Chairman Holmberg closed the hearing on HB 1205. 

I 

II 



2013 SENATE STANDING COMMITTEE MINUTES 

Senate Appropriations Committee 
Harvest Room, State Capitol 

HB 1205 
Apri l 5, 2013 
Job # 20929 

0 Conference Committee 

Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

A bi l l  relat ing to patriotic logos on number plates. 

Minutes: 

Chairman Holmberg re-opened the hearing on HB 1250. We've had our experts work on 
it and we're wondering what this b i l l  does. We're looking at first engrossments with Senate 
amendments. 

Linda Sitz, Motor Vehicle Division, DOT: Comparing the present HB1205 from the 
origi nal bi l l ;  on the first page, it talks about the Gold Star plates and the POW plates. What 
they want to do is to offer those plates and waive the $25 registration fee for special letter 
plates. 

Chairman Holmberg: So the veteran that had Gold Star or POW plate wouldn't have to 
pay the extra fee. 

Senator Warner: I s  this a brand new plate or a decal that goes on the plate? 

Linda Sitz, Motor Vehicle Division, DOT: These plates exist already. They are talking 
about allowing those individuals to have those fees waived on the Gold Star plate and 
POW plate. 

Senator Warner: Are there specific defin itions on who can use those plates? 

Linda Sitz: Yes, and that is determined by the Veterans Affairs committee. 

Senator Gary Lee: I understand waiving the one vehicle exemptions but they are asking 
for two plates. (Page 4,  l ine 4) 

Linda Sitz: That is correct. They added that option for the surviving spouse for the POW. 
Linda explained what the bi l l  is doing and said the veterans want to create four new logos 
that veterans can have. 



Senate Appropriations Com m ittee 
HB 1205 
Apri l 5, 2013 
Page 2 

Senator Warner: When we started this the money was to go to the veteran's cemetery. 
None of the money would go to that. Is this revenue neutral for the state? 

Linda Sitz: Explained. It looks like the money is going into the veterans post war trust 
fund . Of the $20, $15 would go into the highway tax d istribution fund and $5 would go into 
the state treasurer which would go into the veteran's funds. 

Senator Gary Lee: Are these four additional new plates or just the logo? 

Linda Sitz: It is both, its new plates with a new logo. The creation of these is in the fiscal 
note. 

Chairman Holmberg: How does this interface with the changing of the Buffalo plates. 

Linda Sitz: It would be a d irect impact. 

Grant Levi, Interim Director, DOT: When we discussed original patriot plate combo, we 
thought we'd work through new license plate. It's our intent to pull all parties together in 
how we proceed when we issue a new plate. The new license issuance is still contained in 
SB 2012 (to date). 

Senator Gary Lee: You're thinking that section 4 might be a little early? 

Levi Grant: We had expressed that to the commfttee. I also had those conversations with 
veteran groups before the amendments. 

Chairman Holmberg: This bill doesn't do anything in lieu of a handicap plate? 

Linda Sitz: They didn't bring that section into HB 1205. 

Chairman Holmberg: Should we do some more checking? 

Discussion followed on possible amendments. 

Chairman Holmberg closed the hearing on HB 1205. 



2013 SENATE STANDING COMMITTEE MINUTES 

Senate Appropriations Committee 
Harvest Room, State Capitol 

HB 1205 
04-09-2013 
Job # 21029 

D Conference Committee 

Com mittee Clerk Signature 

Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution :  

A B ILL relating to  patriotic logos on number plates/ number plate for certain veterans 

Minutes: You may make reference to "attached testimony. 

Chairman Holmberg called the committee to order on Tuesday, April 09, 2013 in  regards 
to HB 1205. All committee members were present. 

Becky J. Keller - Legislative Council 
Lori Laschkewitsch - OMB 

Senator Gary Lee presented Amendment # 13.0296.03005, Testimony attached # 1.  He 
stated he d idn't have anyone here to speak to it but DOT came over and talked to him. This 
amendment has to do with the gold star and license plates and the fees and they are ok 
with these amendments. 

Senator Gary Lee moved the amendment. 2"d by Senator Carlisle. 

Senator Gary Lee: What those amendments do is it removes section 4 and 5 .  Section 4 
has to do with those patriotic logos regarding the DOT to choose 4 d ifferent logos to put on 
the license plates, and as we heard from them and with the DOT budget bill having that new 
license plate in  that bill, it was felt that we should probably incorporate that thinking with 
these logos into that bill rather than have a separate place for designing some new logos 
and that would reduce the fiscal note by about $200,000. I don't have a new fiscal note. 
Also the $9,000 in Section 5 of the bill would be removed as well for some of the start-up 
costs for that logo. It would keep Section 4, which was Section 6 in the bill for $3500. When 
they add a "no fee Charge" to the Gold Star, POW plate and the DAV license plate, it 
reduces about $3500, the amount that would go to the Veterans' Cemetery Trust Fund and 
the Cemetery Maintenance Fund and that $3500 is just to replace that amount. Those are 
the amendments. ( 1 .21 ) 

Chairman Holmberg: The amendments have been moved and seconded. 



Senate Appropriations Com mittee 
HB 1205 
04-09-13 
Page 2 

Senator Robinson: My understanding that when they issue these new plates they're going 
to bring all these groups together and coordinate the over-all effort so we are not being 
redundant. He was told that is correct. 

Senator Wanzek: The amendments are addressing the engrossed House bill, not the 
House bill with the Senate amendments. is that correct? 

Senator Gary lee: That's true. I was using the marked up version. 

Chairman Holmberg: Would you call the roll on amendment # 1 3.0296.03005. All in 
favor say .Aye. It Carried. 

Senator Gary lee Moved Do Pass as Amended . 2"d by Senator Mathern. 

Senator Gary lee: (2.30) The bill I explained it the gold star, POW license plate and the 
Disabled Veteran plates would have their fees reduced and then that reduces the funds that 
go to the Highway Tax Distribution Fund and the Veterans' Cemetery Fund and the 
Maintenance Fund and the Maintenance Fund and the Trust Fund for the cemetery would 
be replaced with this $3500 appropriation and it's really the Highway Tax Distribution Fund 
is a very nominal amount just because the plates themselves are a limited number, like 45. 
There are a small number of POW plates anymore, the DAV plates there's a few more, and 
the Gold Star plates, I think there is 45 of those. That is the bill and I ask for your support. 

Chairman Holmberg: Call the roll on do pass as amended on 1 205. 

A Roll Call vote was taken. Yea: 1 3; Nay: 0; Absent: 0. 

Senator Gary lee will carry the amendment and Senator Axness will carry the bill. 

The hearing was closed on HB 1205. 



1 3.0296.04000 

Amendment to: HB 1 205 

FISCAL NOTE 
Requested by Legislative Council 

04/01/2013 

1 A. State fiscal effect: Identify the state fiscal effect and the fiscal effect on agency appropriations compared to funding 
I I d 

. 
f f 

. 
t d d t l  eve s an appropna tons an tctpa e un er curren aw. 

2011-2013 Biennium 2013·2015 Biennium 

General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds 

Revenues $651 ,688 

Expenditures $274,478 

Appropriations $12,500 

2015-2017 Biennium 

General Fund Other Funds 

$453,908 

$104,828 

1 B. County, city, school district and township fiscal effect: Identify the fiscal effect on the appropriate political 
subdivision 

2011·2013 Biennium 2013·2015 Biennium 2015·2017 Biennium 

Counties $(3,955) $(1 1 ,  182) 

Cities $(2,247) $(6,354) 

School Districts 

Townships $(485) $(1 ,372) 

2 A. Bill and fiscal impact s ummary: Provide a brief summary of the measure, including description of the provisions 
having fiscal impact (limited to 300 characters). 

This bill reduces the fees associated with Gold Star, POW, and DAV license plates; and requires NDDOT to issue a 
"patriotic" plate with 4 decal choices. 

B. Fiscal impact sections: Identify and provide a brief description of the sections of the measure which have fiscal 
impact. Include any assumptions and comments relevant to the analysis. 

While it is not possible to fully determine the impact that sections 1 ,  2, and 3 of this bill will have on revenues, we 
believe any resulting revenue loss will be relatively minor. However, these sections of the bill will have some impact 
on NDDOT expenditures and appropriations due to costs for computer reprogramming, printing, and web site 
changes that will be necessary to implement the provisions of this bill. While it is not possible to fully determine the 
impact of section 4 of the bill as we don't know how many people will choose to purchase a license plate with a 
patriotic decal, we can estimate a fiscal impact based on an assumed scenario. These assumptions are shown in 
the accompanying attachments. 

3. State fiscal effect detail: For information shown under state fiscal effect in 1A, please: 

A. Revenues: Explain the revenue amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each revenue type and fund 
affected and any amounts included in the executive budget. 

While we cannot fully determine the impact that this bill will have on revenues, it is likely that sections 1, 2, and 3 will 
result in a fairly minor loss of revenue to the Highway Tax Distribution Fund, the Veteran's Cemetery Trust Fund, and 
the Veteran's Cemetery Maintenance Fund. We can estimate the revenue impact for section 1 as (24 POW plates + 
45 Gold Star plates) X $25 per year X 2 years per biennium for a total revenue loss of $3,450 per biennium. This 
loss would impact the Highway Tax Distribution Fund. We can estimate the revenue impact for section 2 as (20 Gold 
Star plates per biennium X $ 1 5  initial one-time fee) + (20 Gold Star plates per biennium X $ 1 0  annual surcharge X 2 
years per biennium) = $700 per biennium. The distribution of this loss is $200 to the Highway Tax Distribution Fund, 
$300 to the Veteran's Cemetery Maintenance Fund, and $200 to the Veteran's Cemetery Trust Fund. It is not 
possible to fully determine the revenue impact for section 3 as we have no way to determine the extent that disabled 
veterans currently using the regular buffalo plate will choose to utilize the DAV registration and excise tax 
exemption. While not certain, it is likely that this impact would also be minimal. Section 4 of the bill will likely have a 



more significant revenue impact; please see schedules 3-5 on the accompanying attachments for the calculation of 
the revenue impacts of section 4 of the bill. Please see the accompanying schedule 6 for a recap of the State 
revenue, expenditure, and appropriations impacts of all sections of the bill. 

B. Expenditures: Explain the expenditure amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency, line item, and 
fund affected and the number of FTE positions affected. 

The estimated costs associated with sections 1, 2, and 3 of this bill for the first biennium include computer 
reprogramming ($4,000), and web-site changes and printing($5,000), for a total first biennium cost of $9,000. 
Subsequent biennium costs would be minimal. Section 4 will have a more substantial impact on expenditures to 
NDDOT. Please see schedules 1-2 on the accompanying attachments for the calculation of the expenditure impacts 
of section 4 of the bill. Please see the accompanying schedule 6 for a recap of the State revenue, expenditure, and 
appropriations impacts of all sections of the bill. 

C. Appropriations: Explain the appropriation amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency and fund 
affected. Explain the relationship between the amounts shown for expenditures and appropriations. Indicate whether 
the appropriation is also included in the executive budget or relates to a continuing appropriation. 

Section 5 of the bill provides an appropriation to NDDOT of $9,000 for the 2013-2015 biennium. Section 6 provides 
an appropriation to the Adjutant General of $3,500 for the 2013-2015 biennium. As noted in Section 1A of this fiscal 
note, NDDOT will incur estimated expenditures of $274,478 during the 2013-2015 biennium. Considering the $9,000 
appropriation contained in section 5 of the bill, NDDOT would require an additional appropriation of $265,478 to 
carry out the provisions of section 4 of this bill. Please see the accompanying schedule 6 for a recap of the State 
revenue, expenditure, and appropriations impacts of all sections of the bill. 

Name: Shannon L. Sauer 

Agency: NDDOT 

Telephone: 328-4375 

Date Prepared: 04/04/2013 



EXPENDITURES 

Schedule l • NDOOT Expenditures 

Temporary Salaries 

Design costs for 4 logos 

Mailing Costs 

Purchase cost of plates 

Computer programming costs 

Estimated Total Costs 

HB1205 - Section 4 

Calculation of Fiscal Impacts 
Expenditures 

ml;)�Z21:i Dlconl!&m 
lstyr 2ndyr Total 1st Biennium 

29,064 

6,000 

46,350 

132,150 

4,000 

217,564 

29,064 

4,635 

13,215 

1,000 

47,914 

2013·2015 

$ 58,128 

6,000 

50,985 

145,365 

5,000 

265 478 

2013-2015 
Schedule 2 · Allocation of Expenditure Impact to Revenues distributed 

through the Allocation 
Percentage 

Biennium 
Revenue Reduction -

Biennium 
Revenue Reduction • 

Highway Tax Distribution Fund 

NDDOT 

Public Transportation Fund 

Cities 

Counties 

Townships 

Total 

SCENARIO ASSUMPTIONS 
Cost to NDDOT to purchase one set of plates 

Design costs for 4 logos 

Mailing cost per set of plates 

Temporary employees to handle Initial issue 

Temporary employees to handle additional demand after 1st biennium 

Computer programming costs � 1st year 

Computer programming costs - following years 

Estimated number of plates upon Initial issue 

Estimated number of plates per year after Initial issue 

Initial Issue Fee Revenue per set of plates 

Annual Surcharge Revenue per set of plates 

Highway Tax Distribution Fund share of Initial Issue fee 

Minor totaNng dlj/ffefla!S ar� due to rounding 

Prepared by NOOOT Financial Management OMskm 
4/4/2013 

61.3% 

1.5% 

12.5% 

22.0% 

2.7% 

8.81 

6,000 

3.09 

4,000 

1,000 

15,000 

1,500 

20 

10 

15 

$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
� $ 

1st year 2nd year 

133,367 29,371 

3,263 719 

27,196 5,989 

47,864 10,541 

5,874 1,294 

217,564 47,914 

a215::Zi!1Z l!lmmlYm 
1styr 2ndyr Total 2nd biennium 

29,064 29,064 $ 58,128 

4,635 4,635 9,270 

13,215 13,215 26,430 

1,000 1 000 2 000 
47,914 47,914 95,828 

2015-2017 
2015-2017 Biennium 

Bfennfum Revenue Revenue 
Reduction - Reduction -

1st year 2nd year 

29,371 $ 29,371 

719 $ 719 

5,989 $ 5,989 

10,541 $ 10,541 

1 294 $ 1 294 

47,914 $ 47,914 



REVENUES 

Initial Fee 
Annual Surchal'le 
Total 

NDDOT 

Sclutdul• 4 • AHoaUon of Revenue Impact throu&h 
Hl&f1way Tax DtstrlbuUon Fund 

Public Transportation Fund 
Otles 
Counties 

Townships 
Tot� 

Sch•duk 5 -Net Impact of Revenues •nd &p.ndfture lmpac:t 

on Highway Tax Distribution Fund Recfplents 

.ltiU..Enlllloi 
Veteran's Postwar Trust Fund 
NDDOT Motor Vehicle "Off the Top" fundfnR for ellpendfturel 
NDDOT Share of Impact to HlghwayTa>r: Distribution Fund 
Public Transportation share of lmpKt to Hla;hwayTax Olstributlon Fund 

Total Net Revenue Impact to State Entitles 

Qt!u CoyntJes and Townsb!RS 
Otles Share of Impact to Hia;hwayTax Distribution Fund 
Counties share of lmpatt to Hlahway Tax Olstributlon Fund 
Townships shue of Impact to Htahway Tax Olstrfbutlon Fund 

Total Net Revenue Impact to Otles, Counties, and Townships 

SCENARIO ASSUMPTIONS 
Cost to NOOOTto purchase one set of plates 
Desl&n C05tsfw4 1ocos 
Mafllnc cost pers&t of plates 
TemporafY employees to handle Initial Issue 
Temporary employees to handle additional demand after 1st btennlum 
Computer proa;rammlna: costs- 1st year 
Computer procrammlna: costs - fotlowlns years 
Estimated number of plates upon Initial Issue 
Estlmattd number of pfates per yur aft 1M' Initial issue 
Initial Issue Fee Rewnue per set of plates 
Annual Surchaf'le Revem.�e per set of plates 
Hla;hwayTax Distribution Fund share of lnltlal lssue fee 

PrepwedbVNDOOTRn�t�otr..tMinq-ntPM$1an �""'u 

HB1205 - Section 4 
Calculation of Fiscal Impacts 

Revenues 

32J.il::2QUII!n!!lv:m 
... ' 

lfl&flwayTu v.t.raq's 
·- .... _ 

Total "'"" Tr\dtFund 

300,000 22S,IXXI $ 75,000 
150,000 150,000 
450,000 225,0()) $ 225.000 

2013-2015 201.3-2015 
... -. lhnnklm · Biennium· 

........... ... _ ,... ,.., 
61.3% $ 137,925 $ 13,793 

1.5% $ 3,375 $ 338 
12,5% $ 28,125 $ �813 
22.()% $ 49,500 $ 4,950 

2.7% $ 61075 $ 608 
$ 225,000 $ 22.500 

20a.2015 2013-2015 ,. ... 2019 
Bfennlum - ht Biennium- Biennium · 

,.., ""' - Totol 

225,000 172,500 $ 397,500 
217,564 47,914 $ 265,478 

4,558 115,579) $ (11.021) 
112 {3811 � f27Q.l 

447.234 

930 
1,636 

201 
2 765 

8,81 
6,000 
3,09 

4,000 
1,000 

15,000 
1,500 

20 
10 
15 

204454 $ 

l3,1n) $ 
15.591) $ 

... $ 
9 455 $ 

651.688 

12.247) 
I3,9SS) 

485 
6690 

iO:U:Z!'!U DlmDIYm 
""'� 

Hl&h\ft\'Tn. Veteran's 

- """""' 
Total .... Tnnt """' 

30,000 22,500 $ 7,500 
16512QQ 165,000 
195.000 22,500 172,500 

2015-2017 2015-2017 
........... . Btonnlwn -

lstyur ""' """' 

$ 13,793 $ 13,793 
$ ... $ '" 

$ U13 $ 2,813 
$ 4,950 $ 4,950 
$ 608 $ 60S 
$ 22.500 $ 22.500 

2015-2017 2015-2017 2015--2017 
Biennium - Biennium • .......... . 

lstyur ""' "'" Tot.O 

187,500 202,500 $ 390,000 
47,914 47,914 $ 95,828 

115,579) )15,579) $ 13�158) 
�3811 {3811 � {7621 

219,454 $ 234,454 $ 453.908 

IS.lnl l3,1n) 16,354) 
15�91) 15�91) (11,182) 

... 686 1 372 
9 455 9 455 18910 

2015-2017 "'-nnlurrt. 1St�., 2015-2017 BMnnlum ·2nd Year 

.....,.., 
HtahwayTax v.t.ran's Tax Veteran's 
............. -.. .......... ..,_, 

Tot>l "'"" ..... ..... Tot>l ....... """ """' 
30,000 22,500 $ 7,500 $ 30,000 $ 22,500 $ 7,500 

1SO,QQQ 180,000 195000 195000 
210,000 22.500 187.500 $ 225.000 $ 22.502 202:500 



HB1205 
Fiscal Note Section lA 

State Fiscal Effect 
Schedule 6 - Recap of State Fiscal Effect 

2011-2013 

Genera l  

Revenues 

Bill Section 4 

Total Reven ues 

Expenditures 

Bil l  Sections 1, 2, 3 

Bil l  Sectio n  4 

Total Expenditures 

Appropriations 

N DDOT - Section 5 

Adjutant General - Section 6 

Total Appropriations 

Prepared by NDDOT Financial Management Division 
4/4/2013 

Fund 

Other 

Funds 

2013-2015 

General Other 

Fund Funds 

$ 651,688 

$ 65 1,688 

$ 9,000 

265,478 

$ 274,478 

$ 

$ 

2015-2017 

General Othe r  

F u n d  Funds 

$ 453,908 

$ 453,908 

$ 9,000 

95,828 

$ 104,828 



Amendment to: HB 1205 

FISCAL NOTE 
Requested by Legislative Council 

0211112013 

1 A. State fiscal effect: Identify the state fiscal effect and the fiscal effect on agency appropriations compared to funding 
levels and appropriations anticipated under current law. 

2011-2013 Biennium 2013-2015 Biennium 2015-2017 Biennium 

General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds 

Revenues 

Expenditures $9,000 

Appropriations $9,000 

1 B. County, city, school district and township fiscal effect: Identify the fiscal effect on the appropriate political 
subdivision 

2011·2013 Biennium 2013-2015 Biennium 2015·2017 Biennium 

Counties 

Cities 

School Districts 

Townships 

2 A. Bill and fiscal impact summary: Provide a brief summary of the measure, including description of the provisions 
having fiscal impact (limited to 300 characters). 

· 

This bill reduces the fees associated with Gold Star, POW, and DAV license plates. 

B. Fiscal impact sections: Identify and provide a brief description of the sections of the measure which have fiscal 
impact. Include any assumptions and comments relevant to the analysis. 

While it is not possible to fully determine the impact this bill will have on revenues, we believe any resulting revenue 
loss will be relatively minor. However, the bill will have some impact on NDDOT expenditures and appropriations due 
to costs for computer reprogramming, printing, and web site changes that will be necessary to implement the 
provisions of this bill. 

3. State fiscal effect detail: For information shown under state fiscal effect in 1A, please: 

A. Revenues: Explain the revenue amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each revenue type and fund 
affected and any amounts included in the executive budget. 

While we cannot fully determine the impact that this bill will have on revenues, it is likely that it will result in a fairly 
minor loss of revenue to the Highway Tax Distribution Fund, the Veteran's Cemetery Trust Fund, and the Veteran's 
Cemetery Maintenance Fund. We can estimate the revenue impact for section 1 as (24 POW plates + 45 Gold Star 
plates) X $25 per year X 2 years per biennium for a total revenue loss of $3,450 per biennium. This loss would 
impact the Highway Tax Distribution Fund. We can estimate the revenue impact for section 2 as (20 Gold Star plates 
per biennium X $15  initial one-time fee)+ (20 Gold Star plates per biennium X $10 annual surcharge X 2 years per 
biennium) = $700 per biennium. The distribution of this loss is $200 to the Highway Tax Distribution Fund, $300 to 
the Veteran's Cemetery Maintenance Fund, and $200 to the Veteran's Cemetery Trust Fund. It is not possible to 
fully determine the revenue impact for section 3 as we have no way to determine the extent that disabled veterans 
currently using the regular buffalo plate will choose to utilize the DAV registration and excise tax exemption. While 
not certain, it is likely that this impact would also be minimal. 



B. Expenditures: Explain the expenditure amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency, line item, and 
fund affected and the number of FTE positions affected. 

The estimated costs associated with this bill for the first biennium include computer reprogramming ($4,000}, and 
web-site changes and printing($5,000), for a total first biennium cost of $9,000. Subsequent biennium costs would 
be minimal. 

C. Appropriations: Explain the appropriation amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency and fund 
affected. Explain the relationship between the amounts shown for expenditures and appropriations. Indicate whether 
the appropriation is also included in the executive budget or relates to a continuing appropriation. 

NDDOT has not included any costs associated with this bill in its 201 3-2015 biennium budget request. Accordingly, 
an additional appropriation of $9,000 would be necessary for the 201 3-2015 biennium. 

Name: Shannon L. Sauer 

Agency: NDDOT 

Telephone: 328-4375 

Date Prepared: 02/1 2/20 1 3  



Bill/Resolution No.: HB 1 205 

FISCAL NOTE 
Requested by Legislative Council 

01/15/2013 

1 A. State fiscal effect: Identify the state fiscal effect and the fiscal effect on agency appropriations compared to funding 
I d /eve s and appropriations anticipate under current law. 

2011-2013 Biennium 2013-2015 Biennium 2015-2017 Biennium 

General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds 

Revenues 

Expenditures $107,500 

Appropriations $1 07,500 

1 B. County, city, school district and township fiscal effect: Identify the fiscal effect on the appropriate political 
subdivision 

2011-2013 Biennium 2013-2015 Biennium 2015·2017 Biennium 

Counties 

Cities 

School Districts 

Townships 

2 A. Bill and fiscal impact s ummary: Provide a brief summary of the measure, including description of the provisions 
having fiscal impact (limited to 300 characters). 

This bill reduces the fees associated with Gold Star, POW, and DAV license plates. 

B. Fiscal impact sections: Identify and provide a brief description of the sections of the measure which have fiscal 
impact. Include any assumptions and comments relevant to the analysis. 

While it is not possible to fully determine the impact this bill will have on revenues, we believe any resulting revenue 
loss will be relatively minor. However, the bill will have a fairly significant impact on NDDOT expenditures and 
appropriations due to significant costs for computer reprogramming, training, printing, web site changes, decal 
development, and additional temporary staffing that will be necessary to implement the provisions of this bill. 

3. State fiscal effect detail: For information shown under state fiscal effect in 1A, please: 

A. Revenues: Explain the revenue amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each revenue type and fund 
affected and any amounts included in the executive budget. 

While we cannot fully determine the impact that this bill will have on revenues, it is likely that it will result in a fairly 
minor loss of revenue to the Highway Tax Distribution Fund, the Veteran's Cemetery Trust Fund, and the Veteran's 
Cemetery Maintenance Fund. We can estimate the revenue impact for section 1 as (24 POW plates + 45 Gold Star 
plates) X $25 per year X 2 years per biennium for a total revenue loss of $3,450 per biennium. This loss would 
impact the Highway Tax Distribution Fund. We can estimate the revenue impact for section 2 as (20 Gold Star plates 
per biennium X $15  initial one-time fee)+ (20 Gold Star plates per biennium X $10 annual surcharge X 2 years per 
biennium) = $700 per biennium. The distribution of this loss is $200 to the Highway Tax Distribution Fund, $300 to 
the Veteran's Cemetery Maintenance Fund, and $200 to the Veteran's Cemetery Trust Fund. It is not possible to 
fully determine the revenue impact for section 3 as we have no way to determine the extent that disabled veterans 
currently using the regular buffalo plate will choose to utilize the DAV registration and excise tax exemption. While 
not certain, it is likely that this impact would also be minimal. 



B. Expenditures: Explain the expenditure amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency, line item, and 
fund affected and the number of FTE positions affected. 

The estimated costs associated with this bill for the first biennium include computer reprogramming ($12,000), web
site changes ($5,000), temporary staffing to cover basic operations while full time staff is involved with central and 
branch office training and program update efforts ($84,000), and printing ($5,000), and decal development ($1,500) 
for a total first biennium cost of $107,500. Subsequent biennium costs would be minimal. 

C. Appropriations: Explain the appropriation amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency and fund 
affected. Explain the relationship between the amounts shown for expenditures and appropriations. Indicate whether 
the appropriation is also included in the executive budget or relates to a continuing appropriation. 

NO DOT has not included any costs associated with this bill in its 2013-2015 biennium budget request. Accordingly, 
an additional appropriation of $107,500 would be necessary for the 2013-2015 biennium. 

Name: Shannon L. Sauer 

Agency: NDDOT 

Telephone: 328-4375 

Date Prepared: 01/21/2013 



13.0296.03005 
Title .05000 

Prepared by the Legislative Counci l  staff for 
Senator G. Lee 

April 5, 2013 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO E N G ROSSED HOUSE BILL N O. 1205 

In lie u  of the amendments adopted by the Senate as printed on pages 969 and 970 of the 
Senate Journal, Engrossed House B i ll No. 1205 is  amended as follows: 

Page 1, line  2, after "number" insert "license" 

Page 4, after line 5, insert: 

"SECTION 4. APPROPRIATION. There is appropriated out of any moneys i n  
t h e  general  fund in  the state treasury, not otherwise appropriated, t h e  s u m  of $3,500, o r  
so  m u ch of the s u m  a s  m a y  b e  necessary, t o  the adjutant genera l  t o  b e  divided equally 
between the veterans'  cemetery trust fund and the veterans' cemetery maintenance 
fund,  for the biennium beg inning July 1, 2013, and ending June 30, 2015." 

Renumber a ccordingly 

Page No. 1 13.0296.03005 



Date: '-f - q -I :3 
Roll Call Vote # / 

2013 SENATE STANDING COMMITTEE 
ROLL CALL VOTES 

BILL/RESOLUTION NO. --�-�_.:.._O..::;;i_S"";____ 
Senate Appropriations Committee 

0 Check here for Conference Committee 

Legislative Council Amendment Number I 3 ,  o� 9&,  0 3  oo:s: 
Action Taken �Adopt Amendment 

D Do Pass as Amended 
D Do Pass 
D Do Not Pass 

Motion Made By Seconded By 

Senators Yes No Senator Yes No 
Chariman Ra_y Holmberg Senator Tim Mathern 
Co-Vice Chairman Bi ll Bowman Senator David O'Connell 
Co-Vice Chair Tony Grindbe rg Senator Larry Robinson 
Sena tor Ral�=>_h Kilzer Senator John Warner 
Sena tor Karen Krebsbach 
Sena tor Robert Erbele 
Senator T er_ry_ Wanzek 
Senator Ron Carlisle 
Senator Gary Lee 

Total (Yes) ---------- N o  --------------

Absen t  

Floor Assignment 

If the vote is on an amendment, briefly indicate intent: 

/ 



Date: 1: - tJ ...- f5 
Roll Cal l  Vote # � 

2013 SENATE STANDING COMMITTEE 
ROLL CALL VOTES 

BILL/RESOLUTION NO. )d, {) .5" 
Senate Appropriations 

D Check here for Conference Committee 

Legis lative Council Amendment Number 

Act ion Taken D Adopt Amendment 1i.._Do Pass as Amended 
D Do Pass 
D Do Not Pass 

Motion Made By -.....Jdb-L--=...Le-:>=a..-=------ Seconded By 

Senators Ye� No Senator 
Chariman Ray Holmberg /' Senator Tim M athern 
Co-Vice Chairman Bi l l  Bowman / ./' Senator David O'Connell 
Co-Vice Chair Tony Grind berg y Senator Larry Robinson 
Senator Ralph Kilzer ;/ Senator John Warner 
Senator Karen Krebsbach � 
Senator Robert Erbele /,_ 
Senator Terry Wanzek , 

Senator Ron Carlisle / L 
Senator Gary Lee � 

Committee 

Yes , No 

y/' 
,/' -/ v 
/ 

Total (Yes) _____ \r-3.._,L--- N o  _.......:0:.__ ________ _ 
Absent 

Floor Assignment 

If the vote is on an amendment, briefiy indicate intent� 
_ � .t,;.1/ 

/ 



Com Standing Committee Report 
April 9, 2013 4:58pm 

Module ID: s_stcomrep_63_018 
Carrier: Axness 

Insert LC: 13.0296.03005 Title: 05000 

REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE 
HB 1205, as engrossed and amended: Appropriations Committee (Sen. Holmberg, 

Chairman) recommends AMENDMENTS AS FOLLOWS and when so amended, 
recommends DO PASS ( 1 3  YEAS, 0 NAYS, 0 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). 
Engrossed HB 1 205, as amended, was placed on the Sixth order o n  the calendar. 

I n  l ieu of the amendments adopted by the Senate as printed o n  pages 969 and 970 of the 
Senate Journal, Engrossed House Bi l l  No. 1 205 is amended as follows: 

Page 1 ,  l ine 2, after "number" insert "license" 

Page 4, after line 5, insert: 

"SECTION 4. APP ROPRIATION. There is appropriated out of any moneys in  
the general fund in the state treasury, not  otherwise appropriated , the sum of  $3,500, 
or so much of the sum as may be necessary, to the adjutant general to be divided 
equally between the veterans' cemetery trust fund and the veterans' cemetery 
maintenance fund,  for the biennium beginn ing July 1 ,  201 3, and ending June 30, 
201 5. "  

Renumber accordingly 

(1) DESK (3) COMMITIEE Page 1 s_stcomrep_63_01 8  



2013 CONFERENCE COMMITTEE 

HB 1205 



2013 HOUSE STANDING COMMITTEE MINUTES 

House Transportation Committee 
Fort Totten Room, State Capitol 

HB 1205 
04-17-13 

Job # 21223 

� Conference Committee 

Committee Clerk Signature 

Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

A bill relating to number license plates for certain veterans. 

Minutes: 

Representative Vigesaa called the conference committee to order and asked the Senators 
to explain the reasoning for adding the amendment which has an appropriation of $3,500. 

1:00 - 5 :00 minutes - Unrelated discussion on the wrong bill. 

Senator Axness: We added Section 4 in the transportation committee which laid out the 
patriotic logos. The appropriation was to cover the loss that the Veterans' Cemetery would 
have from these fees. We didn't want them to lose that, so we decided to appropriate 
money. When it went to Appropriations they decided that Section 4 would be added to the 
Department of Transportation budget and we'll just retain the appropriation for the 
Veterans' Cemetery. That is where we are on the engrossed bill as it stands now. 

Representative Vigesaa: I asked the question during our hearing if reducing the funding 
for the cemetery a little bit would cause any discomfort with the Veterans' groups. At that 
time we were assured that it was such a small amount that it wasn't really going to affect 
their budget in any way and how to take care of the cemetery. I have information about the 
current fund balance for the Veterans' Cemetery trust fund and the Veterans' Cemetery 
maintenance fund. See attachment # 1 .  Also handed out were the projections for the 
maintenance account. See attachment #2. The amendment that the Senate added puts a 
mere $1750 in each account. I am not seeing the need to add that minuscule amount 
when the fund balance and the projected ending balances are what they are. 

Senator Axness: We did not have the information that you just provided. If we had seen it, 
we might not have added the appropriation. 

Senator Campbell moved to recede from Senate amendments. 
Senator Sitte seconded the motion. 

Senator Sitte: I wanted to make sure that the Patriotic Logos are still in. Is that correct? 



House Transportation Committee 
HB 1205 
04/18/13 
Page 2 

Representative Vigesaa:  The version that I am working off of is . 05000. 

Representative Sitte: Okay, we're fine. 

A roll call vote was taken. Aye 6 Nay 0 Absent 0 
The motion carried. 

The meeting was adjourned. 



1 3.0296.05000 

Amendment to: HB 1 205 

FISCAL N OTE 
Requested by Legislative Council 

04/10/2013 

1 A. State fiscal effect: Identify the state fiscal effect and the fiscal effect on agency appropriations compared to funding 
I I d 

. 
t" t" 

. 
t d d t l  eve s an appropna wns an ICtpa e un er curren aw. 

2011·2013 Biennium 2013·2015 Biennium 

General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds 

Revenues 

Expenditures $9,000 

Appropriations $3,500 

2015-2017 Biennium 

General Fund Other Funds 

1 B. County, city, school district and township fiscal effect: Identify the fiscal effect on the appropriate political 
subdivision 

2011·2013 Biennium 2013·2015 Biennium 2015·2017 Biennium 

Counties 

Cities 

School Districts 

Townships 

2 A. Bill and fiscal impact summary: Provide a brief summary of the measure, including description of the provisions 
having fiscal impact (limited to 300 characters). 

This bill reduces the fees associated with Gold Star, POW, and DAV license plates. 

B. Fiscal impact sections: Identify and provide a brief description of the sections of the measure which have fiscal 
impact. Include any assumptions and comments relevant to the analysis. 

While it is not possible to fully determine the impact this bill will have on revenues, we believe any resulting revenue 
loss will be relatively minor. However, the bill will have some impact on NDDOT expenditures and appropriations due 
to costs for computer reprogramming, printing, and web site changes that will be necessary to implement the 
provisions of this bill. 

3. State fiscal effect detail: For information shown under state fiscal effect in 1A, please: 

A. Revenues: Explain the revenue amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each revenue type and fund 
affected and any amounts included in the executive budget. 

While we cannot fully determine the impact that this bill will have on revenues, it is likely that sections 1 ,  2, and 3 will 
result in a fairly minor loss of revenue to the Highway Tax Distribution Fund, the Veteran's Cemetery Trust Fund, and 
the Veteran's Cemetery Maintenance Fund. We can estimate the revenue impact for section 1 as (24 POW plates + 
45 Gold Star plates) X $25 per year X 2 years per biennium for a total revenue loss of $3,450 per biennium. This 
loss would impact the Highway Tax Distribution Fund. We can estimate the revenue impact for section 2 as (20 Gold 
Star plates per biennium X $15 initial one-time fee)+ (20 Gold Star plates per biennium X $10 annual surcharge X 2 
years per biennium) = $700 per biennium. The distribution of this loss is $200 to the Highway Tax Distribution Fund, 
$300 to the Veteran's Cemetery Maintenance Fund, and $200 to the Veteran's Cemetery Trust Fund. It is not 
possible to fully determine the revenue impact for section 3 as we have no way to determine the extent that disabled 
veterans currently using the regular buffalo plate will choose to utilize the DAV registration and excise tax 
exemption. While not certain, it is likely that this impact would also be minimal. 



B. Expenditures: Explain the expenditure amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency, line item, and 
fund affected and the number of FTE positions affected. 

The estimated costs associated with sections 1 ,  2, and 3 of this bill for the first biennium include computer 
reprogramming ($4,000}, and web-site changes and printing($5,000), for a total first biennium cost of $9,000. 
Subsequent biennium costs would be minimal. 

C. Appropriations: Explain the appropriation amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency and fund 
affected. Explain the relationship between the amounts shown for expenditures and appropriations. Indicate whether 
the appropriation is also included in the executive budget or relates to a continuing appropriation. 

Section 4 of the bill provides an appropriation of $3,500 to the Adjustant General. The bill does not provide any 
additional approriation to NO DOT to cover the $9,000 of expenditures identified in part 38 above 

Name: Shannon L. Sauer 

Agency: NDDOT 

Telephone: 328-4375 

Date Prepared: 04/1 0/201 3  



13.0296.04000 

Amendment to: HB 1205 

FISCAL NOTE 
Requested by Legislative Council 

04/01/2013 

1 A. State fiscal effect: Identify the state fiscal effect and the fiscal effect on agency appropriations compared to funding 
I I d . f f 

. 
t d d t l  eve s an appropna 10ns an JcJpa e un er curren aw. 

2011·2013 Biennium 2013·2015 Biennium 

General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds 

Revenues $651,688 

Expenditures $274,478 

Appropriations $12,500 

2015·2017 Biennium 

General Fund Other Funds 

$453,908 

$104,828 

1 B. County, city, school district and township fiscal effect: Identify the fiscal effect on the appropriate political 
subdivision 

2011·2013 Biennium 2013·2015 Biennium 2015·2017 Biennium 

Counties $(3,955) $(1 1 , 1 82) 

Cities $(2,247) $(6,354) 

School Districts 

Townships $(485) $(1 ,372) 

2 A. Bill and fiscal impact summary: Provide a brief summary of the measure, including description of the provisions 
having fiscal impact (limited to 300 characters). 

This bill reduces the fees associated with Gold Star, POW, and DAV license plates; and requires NDDOT to issue a 
"patriotic" plate with 4 decal choices. 

B. Fiscal impact sections: Identify and provide a brief description of the sections of the measure which have fiscal 
impact. Include any assumptions and comments relevant to the analysis. 

While it is not possible to fully determine the impact that sections 1, 2, and 3 of this bill will have on revenues, we 
believe any resulting revenue loss will be relatively minor. However, these sections of the bill will have some impact 
on NDDOT expenditures and appropriations due to costs for computer reprogramming, printing, and web site 
changes that will be necessary to implement the provisions of this bill. While it is not possible to fully determine the 
impact of section 4 of the bill as we don't know how many people will choose to purchase a license plate with a 
patriotic decal, we can estimate a fiscal impact based on an assumed scenario. These assumptions are shown in 
the accompanying attachments. 

3. State fiscal effect detail: For information shown under state fiscal effect in 1A, please: 

A. Revenues: Explain the revenue amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each revenue type and fund 
affected and any amounts included in the executive budget. 

While we cannot fully determine the impact that this bill will have on revenues, it is likely that sections 1, 2, and 3 will 
result in a fairly minor loss of revenue to the Highway Tax Distribution Fund, the Veteran's Cemetery Trust Fund, and 
the Veteran's Cemetery Maintenance Fund. We can estimate the revenue impact for section 1 as (24 POW plates + 
45 Gold Star plates) X $25 per year X 2 years per biennium for a total revenue loss of $3,450 per biennium. This 
loss would impact the Highway Tax Distribution Fund. We can estimate the revenue impact for section 2 as (20 Gold 
Star plates per biennium X $15 initial one-time fee)+ (20 Gold Star plates per biennium X $10 annual surcharge X 2 
years per biennium) = $700 per biennium. The distribution of this loss is $200 to the Highway Tax Distribution Fund, 
$300 to the Veteran's Cemetery Maintenance Fund, and $200 to the Veteran's Cemetery Trust Fund. It is not 
possible to fully determine the revenue impact for section 3 as we have no way to determine the extent that disabled 
veterans currently using the regular buffalo plate will choose to utilize the DAV registration and excise tax 
exemption. While not certain, it is likely that this impact would also be minimal. Section 4 of the bill will likely have a 



more significant revenue impact; please see schedules 3-5 on the accompanying attachments for the calculation of 
the revenue impacts of section 4 of the bill. Please see the accompanying schedule 6 for a recap of the State 
revenue, expenditure, and appropriations impacts of all sections of the bill. 

B. Expenditures: Explain the expenditure amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency, line item, and 
fund affected and the number of F TE positions affected. 

The estimated costs associated with sections 1, 2, and 3 of this bill for the first biennium include computer 
reprogramming {$4,000), and web-site changes and printing{$5,000), for a total first biennium cost of $9,000. 
Subsequent biennium costs would be minimal. Section 4 will have a more substantial impact on expenditures to 
NO DOT. Please see schedules 1 -2 on the accompanying attachments for the calculation of the expenditure impacts 
of section 4 of the bill. Please see the accompanying schedule 6 for a recap of the State revenue, expenditure, and 
appropriations impacts of all sections of the bill. 

C. Appropriations: Explain the appropriation amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency and fund 
affected. Explain the relationship between the amounts shown for expenditures and appropriations. Indicate whether 
the appropriation is a/so included in the executive budget or relates to a continuing appropriation. 

Section 5 of the bill provides an appropriation to NDDOT of $9,000 for the 2013-2015 biennium. Section 6 provides 
an appropriation to the Adjutant General of $3,500 for the 2013-20 1 5  biennium. As noted in Section 1 A  of this fiscal 
note, NDDOT will incur estimated expenditures of $274,478 during the 201 3-2015 biennium. Considering the $9,000 
appropriation contained in section 5 of the bill, NDDOT would require an additional appropriation of $265,478 to 
carry out the provisions of section 4 of this bill. Please see the accompanying schedule 6 for a recap of the State 
revenue, expenditure, and appropriations impacts of all sections of the bill. 

Name: Shannon L. Sauer 

Agency: NDDOT 

Telephone: 328-4375 

Date Prepared: 04/04/201 3  



EXPENDITURES 

Schedule l - NDDOT Expenditures 

Temporary Salaries 

Design costs for 4 1ogos 

Mailing Costs 

Purchase cost of plates 

Computer programming costs 

Estimated Total Costs 

HB1205 - Section 4 

Calculation of Fi�cal lmpacts 
Expenditures 

1st yr 

29,064 

6,000 

46,350 

132,150 

4 000 

217,564 

201$�2015 Biennium 
2nd yr Total lst Biennium 

29,064 $ 58,128 

4,635 

13,215 

1 000 

47,914 

2013:2015 

6,000 

50,985 

145,365 

5 000 

265,478 

2013-2015 
Schedule 2 - Allocation of Expenditure Impact to Revenues distributed Biennium Biennium 

through the 

Highway Tax Distribution Fund 

NO DOT 

Public Transportation Fund 

Cities 

Counties 

Townships 

Total 

SCENARIO ASSUMPTIONS 
Cost to NODOT to purchase one set of plates 

Design costs for 4 logos 

Mailing cost per set of plates 

Temporary employees to handle Initial issue 

Temporary employees to handle additional demand after 1st biennium 

Computer programming costs - 1st year 

Computer programming costs - following years 

Estfmated number of plates upon Initial issue 

Estimated number of plates per year after Initial issue 

Initial Issue Fee Revenue per set of plates 

Annual Surcharge Revenue per set of plates 

Highway Tax Distribution Fund share of Initial issue fee 

Minor totaling dlf{erenusaredue to rounding 

Prepared by NOOOT Flnandal Management Dlvlslo.n 
4/4/2013 

Allocation Revenue Reductlon .. Revenue Reduction -
Percentage 1st year 2nd year 

61.3% 133,367 29,371 

1.5% 3,263 719 

12.5% 27,196 5,989 

22.0% 47,864 10,541 

2.7'.0 5,874 1 294 

217,564 47,914 

8.81 

6,000 

3.09 

$ 4,000 

$ 1,000 

15,000 

1,500 

$ 20 

$ 10 

$ 15 

2015=2017 Bleoolum 
lstyr 

29,064 

4,635 

13,215 

1 000 

47 914 

2015-2017 
Biennium Revenue 

Reduction -
1st year 

$ 29,371 

$ 719 

$ 5,989 

$ 10,541 

$ 1 294 

$ 47,914 

2nd yr Total 2nd biennium 
29,064 $ 58,128 

4,635 

13,215 

1 000 

47,914 

2015-2017 
Biennium 
Revenue 

Reduction -
2ndyear 

29,371 

719 

5,989 

10,541 

1 294 

47,914 

9,270 

26,430 

2 000 

95,828 



REVENUES 

Initial Fee 
AnnuaiSurchara:e 
Total 

NDOOT 

Sch•duk 4 • Altocat!cn of Rewnuo lmpact throulh 
Hleftway Tax DfstributJon Fund 

Public Transportation Fund 
atl .. 
Counties 

Townships 
Total 

Sch•duk 5 -Net Impact of Rev.nu•s and bp�mdHura lmpact 
on Hlahw•yTax Dfttribu.Uon Fund Recipients 

� 
Veteran's PostwarTNSt Fund 
NOOOT Motor Vehicle MOff the Top" fundlna for expenditures 
NOOOT Shar. of Impact to HlthwayTax Distribution Fund 
PublfcTr&nsportatlon sha11t of Impact to HlahwayTax Distribution Fund 

Total Net Reve.nue lmpact to State Entitles 

Qt[M CQuflt!ts JDd Tgwn$fpJ 
Ctles Share of Impact to Hl1hwayTax Distribution Fund 
Counties s.hare of Impact to Hlahway Tax Distribution Fund 
Townships share of Imp ad: to Hlahway Tax Ol$tributlon Fund 

Total Net Revenue Impact to ClUes, Counties, and Townships 

SCENARIO ASSUMPTIONS 
Cost to NOOOT to purchase one set of plates 
DesiJ;n costs for4 1oios 
Mallin& cost per set of plates 
Temporary employees to handle Initial issue 
Temporary employees to handle additional demand after 1st biennium 
Computer proa;rammlna costs� 1st year 
Computer proa;rammlna costs� followina years 
Estimated number of plates upon Initial Issue 
Estimated number of plates par year after Initial issue 
Initial Issue Feft Revenue per set of plates 
Annual Surtharae Revenue per set of plates 
Hlahw,ay Tax Dfstrfbutlon Fund share of lnftlal lssue fee 

HB1205 - Section 4 
Calculation of Fiscal Impacts 

Revenues 

ZQJJ:iQ:L:i Dllnnlvm i2&:J:a2:L511ttlllhtm 
... "' 

HllhwavTax Veteran's 
Dktributlcn ... _ 

Toto! Fun<! Trutt fund 
300,000 22S,OCO $ 75,000 
150,000 lSO,OOO 
450,000 225000 $ 225.000 

2013-2015 2013-2015 
Allocation Blennium · Blecmlum · 

Percentat• 1st year 2nd year 

61.3% $ 137,925 $ 13,793 
1.5% $ 3,375 $ ,,.. 

12.5% $ 28,125 $ 2,813 
22.0% $ 49,500 $ 4,950 
2.7% s 2t075 $ 60S 

s 225.000 $ 22,500 

201J-201S 2013-2015 2013-2015 
lhnnium •llt Biennium • .......... . 

,. .. 2nd y  .. r Toto! 

225,000 172,500 397,500 
217,5S4 47,914 265,478 

4,$58 (15,5791 (11,021) 
112 f381) {2701 

447.234 204454 651688 

930 (3,177) $ (�2471 
�636 

201 
2,765 

8.81 
6,000 
3.09 

1 
4,000 
�000 

15,000 
�500 

20 
10 
15 

(5,5911 $ (3�551 

.. �:: } (6�::1 

2nd�r 

Hf&hwayTu Vetwan's 
Di- ... _ 

Total Fun<! Tr ... Fun<l 
30,000 22,500 $ '·""' 

1651000 16S&QQ 
195,000 22,50!) 172.500 

2015-2017 '2015-2017 
Biennium • Biennium · 

lstyur ,... ,... 

$ 13,793 $ 13,793 
$ "' $ "' 

$ 2,813 $ 2,813 
$ 4,950 $ 4,950 
s ""' ! 60S 
$ 22.500 $ 22,50!) 

2015-2017 201S-2017 201S-2017 
.......... .  Biennium • ......... . 

lJty.ar ""' •"' Total 

!S7.SOO "'"""' 390,000 
47,914 47,914 95,828 

(15,9791 (15,9791 (31,158) 
j381j �3811 {762j 

219.454 234.454 453,908 

{3,177) (3,177) (6,3541 
(S,S91I (5.591) (11,.182) 

!sj5;J (94Ssl s ,Iij�l 

2015-2017 816nnlum · 1st%!!' 2025-2017 Btenftktm ·2nd Yur 

Hilhway 
HiaflwayTax v.teran's Tlox Veteran'• 
"""'""'""' ... _ Diotributl Postwar 

Toto! "'"" TrunFun<l Toto! on fun<! Trust Fund 

30,000 22,500 $ 7,500 $ 30,000 $ 22,'!1XJ $ '·""' 
1801000 180,000 195.000 195� 
210,000 22.500 187.500 s 225,000 S 22SOO 202.500 



HB1205 
Fiscal Note Section lA 

State Fiscal Effect 
Schedule 6 - Recap of State Fiscal Effect 

2011-2013 

Gene ra l  

Revenues 

Bill Section 4 

Total Reven ues 

Expenditures 

Bill Sections 1, 2, 3 

Bil l  Section 4 

Total Expenditures 

Appropriations 

N DDOT - Section 5 

Adjutant Genera l - Section 6 

Total Appropriations 

Prepared by NDDOT Financial Management Division 
4/4/2013 

Fund 

Other 

Funds 

2013-2015 

' General  Other 

Fund Funds 

$ 65 1,688 

$ 651,688 

$ 9,000 

265,478 

$ 274,478 

$ 9,000 

3,500 

$ 12,500 

2015-2017 

Genera l  Other 
Fund Funds 

$ 453,908 

$ 453,908 

$ 9,000 

95,828 

$ 104,828 



Amendment to: HB 1205 

FISCAL N OTE 
Requested by Legislative Council 

0211112013 

1 A. State fiscal effect: Identify the state fiscal effect and the fiscal effect on agency appropriations compared to funding 
levels and appropriations anticipated under current law. 

2011-2013 Biennium 2013-2015 Biennium 2015-2017 Biennium 

General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds 

Revenues 

Expenditures $9,000 

Appropriations $9,000 

1 B. County, city, school district and township fiscal effect: Identify the fiscal effect on the appropriate political 
subdivision 

2011·2013 Biennium 2013-2015 Biennium 2015·2017 Biennium 

Counties 

Cities 

School Districts 

Townships 

2 A. Bill and fiscal impact summary: Provide a brief summary of the measure, including description of the provisions 
having fiscal impact (limited to 300 characters). 

· 

This bill reduces the fees associated with Gold Star, POW, and DAV license plates. 

B. Fiscal impact sections: Identify and provide a brief description of the sections of the measure which have fiscal 
impact. Include any assumptions and comments relevant to the analysis. 

While it is not possible to fully determine the impact this bill will have on revenues, we believe any resulting revenue 
loss will be relatively minor. However, the bill will have some impact on NDDOT expenditures and appropriations due 
to costs for computer reprogramming, printing, and web site changes that will be necessary to implement the 
provisions of this bill. 

3. State fiscal effect detail: For information shown under state fiscal effect in 1A, please: 

A. Revenues: Explain the revenue amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each revenue type and fund 
affected and any amounts included in the executive budget. 

While we cannot fully determine the impact that this bill will have on revenues, it is likely that it will result in a fairly 
minor loss of revenue to the Highway Tax Distribution Fund, the Veteran's Cemetery Trust Fund, and the Veteran's 
Cemetery Maintenance Fund. We can estimate the revenue impact for section 1 as (24 POW plates + 45 Gold Star 
plates) X $25 per year X 2 years per biennium for a total revenue loss of $3,450 per biennium. This loss would 
impact the Highway Tax Distribution Fund. We can estimate the revenue impact for section 2 as (20 Gold Star plates 
per biennium X $15  initial one-time fee)+ (20 Gold Star plates per biennium X $10 annual surcharge X 2 years per 
biennium) = $700 per biennium. The distribution of this loss is $200 to the Highway Tax Distribution Fund, $300 to 
the Veteran's Cemetery Maintenance Fund, and $200 to the Veteran's Cemetery Trust Fund. It is not possible to 
fully determine the revenue impact for section 3 as we have no way to determine the extent that disabled veterans 
currently using the regular buffalo plate will choose to utilize the DAV registration and excise tax exemption. While 
not certain, it is likely that this impact would also be minimal. 



B. Expenditures: Explain the expenditure amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency, line item, and 
fund affected and the number of FTE positions affected. 

The estimated costs associated with this bill for the first biennium include computer reprogramming ($4,000}, and 
web-site changes and printing($5,000), for a total first biennium cost of $9,000. Subsequent biennium costs would 
be minimal. 

C. Appropriations: Explain the appropriation amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency and fund 
affected. Explain the relationship between the amounts shown for expenditures and appropriations. Indicate whether 
the appropriation is also included in the executive budget or relates to a continuing appropriation. 

NDDOT has not included any costs associated with this bill in its 201 3-2015 biennium budget request. Accordingly, 
an additional appropriation of $9,000 would be necessary for the 201 3-2015 biennium. 

Name: Shannon L. Sauer 

Agency: NDDOT 

Telephone: 328-4375 

Date Prepared: 02/1 2/20 1 3  



Bill/Resolution No.: HB 1 205 

FISCAL NOTE 
Requested by Legislative Council 

01/15/2013 

1 A. State fiscal effect: Identify the state fiscal effect and the fiscal effect on agency appropriations compared to funding 
I d /eve s and appropriations anticipate under current law. 

2011-2013 Biennium 2013-2015 Biennium 2015-2017 Biennium 

General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds 

Revenues 

Expenditures $107,500 

Appropriations $1 07,500 

1 B. County, city, school district and township fiscal effect: Identify the fiscal effect on the appropriate political 
subdivision 

2011-2013 Biennium 2013-2015 Biennium 2015·2017 Biennium 

Counties 

Cities 

School Districts 

Townships 

2 A. Bill and fiscal impact s ummary: Provide a brief summary of the measure, including description of the provisions 
having fiscal impact (limited to 300 characters). 

This bill reduces the fees associated with Gold Star, POW, and DAV license plates. 

B. Fiscal impact sections: Identify and provide a brief description of the sections of the measure which have fiscal 
impact. Include any assumptions and comments relevant to the analysis. 

While it is not possible to fully determine the impact this bill will have on revenues, we believe any resulting revenue 
loss will be relatively minor. However, the bill will have a fairly significant impact on NDDOT expenditures and 
appropriations due to significant costs for computer reprogramming, training, printing, web site changes, decal 
development, and additional temporary staffing that will be necessary to implement the provisions of this bill. 

3. State fiscal effect detail: For information shown under state fiscal effect in 1A, please: 

A. Revenues: Explain the revenue amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each revenue type and fund 
affected and any amounts included in the executive budget. 

While we cannot fully determine the impact that this bill will have on revenues, it is likely that it will result in a fairly 
minor loss of revenue to the Highway Tax Distribution Fund, the Veteran's Cemetery Trust Fund, and the Veteran's 
Cemetery Maintenance Fund. We can estimate the revenue impact for section 1 as (24 POW plates + 45 Gold Star 
plates) X $25 per year X 2 years per biennium for a total revenue loss of $3,450 per biennium. This loss would 
impact the Highway Tax Distribution Fund. We can estimate the revenue impact for section 2 as (20 Gold Star plates 
per biennium X $15  initial one-time fee)+ (20 Gold Star plates per biennium X $10 annual surcharge X 2 years per 
biennium) = $700 per biennium. The distribution of this loss is $200 to the Highway Tax Distribution Fund, $300 to 
the Veteran's Cemetery Maintenance Fund, and $200 to the Veteran's Cemetery Trust Fund. It is not possible to 
fully determine the revenue impact for section 3 as we have no way to determine the extent that disabled veterans 
currently using the regular buffalo plate will choose to utilize the DAV registration and excise tax exemption. While 
not certain, it is likely that this impact would also be minimal. 



B. Expenditures: Explain the expenditure amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency, line item, and 
fund affected and the number of FTE positions affected. 

The estimated costs associated with this bill for the first biennium include computer reprogramming ($12,000), web
site changes ($5,000), temporary staffing to cover basic operations while full time staff is involved with central and 
branch office training and program update efforts ($84,000), and printing ($5,000), and decal development ($1,500) 
for a total first biennium cost of $107,500. Subsequent biennium costs would be minimal. 

C. Appropriations: Explain the appropriation amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency and fund 
affected. Explain the relationship between the amounts shown for expenditures and appropriations. Indicate whether 
the appropriation is also included in the executive budget or relates to a continuing appropriation. 

NO DOT has not included any costs associated with this bill in its 2013-2015 biennium budget request. Accordingly, 
an additional appropriation of $107,500 would be necessary for the 2013-2015 biennium. 

Name: Shannon L. Sauer 

Agency: NDDOT 

Telephone: 328-4375 

Date Prepared: 01/21/2013 



2013 HOUSE CONFERENCE COMMITTEE ROLL CAL L  VOTES 

Committee: HOUSE TRANSPORTATION 

Bill/Resolution No. HB 1205 
------------------

Date: 04/17/13 

Roll Call Vote #: 1 

as (re) engrossed 

Action Taken D HOUSE accede to Senate amendments 
D HOUSE accede to Senate amendments and further amend 
[gl SENATE recede from Senate amendments 
D SENATE recede from Senate amendments and amend as follows 

House/Senate Amendments on HJ/SJ page(s) 1423 ��--------------

D Unable to agree, recommends that the committee be discharged and a 
new committee be appointed 

((Re) Engrossed) HB 1205 

of business on the calendar 

Motion Made by: Senator Campbell 

Vote Count Yes: 6 
---------

House Carrier Representative Vigesaa 

LC Number 

LC Number 

Emergency clause added or deleted 

Statement of purpose of amendment 

was placed on the Seventh order 

Seconded by: ....;S:....:e:...:..n:...:.;a..:..:to:...:..r-=S..:..:itt.:..=e ____________ _ 

No: 0 Absent: 0 
--------- ------

Senate Carrier Senator Sitte 
---------------------

of amendment 
-------------------

-------------------
of engrossment 



Com Conference Committee Report 
April 1 7, 201 3  4:1 3pm 

Module ID: h_cfcomrep_68_003 

REPORT OF CONFERENCE COMMITTEE 
HB 1 205, as engrossed: Your conference committee (Sens. Sitte, Axness, Campbell and 

Reps. Vigesaa, Frantsvog, Delmore) recommends that the SENATE RECEDE from 
the Senate amendments as printed on HJ page 1423 and place H B  1 205 on the 
Seventh order. 

Engrossed H B  1 205 was placed on the Seventh order of business on the calendar. 

(1)  DESK (2) COMMITTEE Page 1 h_cfcomrep_68_003 



2013 TESTIMONY 

HB 1205 



Some applicable NDCC's  

License plates 
Gold Star 

**Remove all additional fees for having this plate . 

39-04-1 0. 1 4. North Dakota gold star number plates - Defin ition - Descri ption - Fee. 
1 .  The director may issue distinctive number plates to a surviving spouse, parent, including 
stepmother, stepfather, parent through adoption , and foster parent who stands or stood in loco 
parentis, g randparents, chi ld ,  including stepchild and child through adoption ,  and sib l ing , 
including half-brother and half-sister, of a member of the armed forces of the Un ited States who 
died whi le serving on active duty during a time of mi l itary conflict. The director shall issue a 
number plate u nder this section upon receiving: 
a .  Payment of al l  other fees required under this chapter for registration of a motor vehicle-;-.:. 
b. Payment of an initial fee of fifteen dollars, of which ten dollars is to be deposited in the 
highway ta)( distribution fund and five dollars is to be deposited in the veterans' cemetery 
maintenance fund; and 
c. Verification of subsequent payments of an annual surcharge of ten dollars paid to the adjutant 

general. 
2 .  The department shall collect the fees and the ten dollar surcharge under this section. 
The department shall report to the legislative assembly on the funds collected under this section 
during each legislative session. The department shall pay the funds collected for the veterans' 
cemetery and adjutant general to the adjutant general monthly. Within ten days of receipt of the 
funds, the adjutant general shall deposit five dollars of each initial fee in the veterans' cemetery 
maintenance fund and shall apportion the ten dollar surcharge and deposit five dollars in the 
veterans' cemetery trust fund and five dollars in the veterans' cemetery maintenance fund in the 
state treasury. The state treasurer may invest the fund in the same manner as the state 
investment board is authorized to make investments. At the request of the adjutant general, the 
interest in the veterans' cemetery trust fund must be deposited in the veterans' cemetery 
maintenance fund for the purpose of funding salaries and maintenance of the veterans' 
cemetery. 
J.:. Plates issued u nder this section must bear a gold star emblem logo on the left side of the 
plate and the letters "GS" before the number. The director shall cooperate with the d irector of 
the department of veterans' affa irs to design the gold star emblem logo. The director may issue 
one set of plates per el ig ible owner of a passenger m otor vehicle or a truck the registered gross 
weight of which does not exceed twenty thousand pounds [907 1 . 85 ki lograms]. 
4.  On req uest of the d irector, the department of veterans' affairs shal l  certify those surviving 
fami ly members of deceased members of the United States armed forces l isted above as 
el ig ible to receive the plates. 
5 .  Once declared el ig ible for a gold star plate, the department may not rem ove the el ig ib i l ity of a 
surviving fami ly  member. 
6. Once a plate number is issued to an el igible fami ly  member, the department may not assign 
the plate to another el ig ible person .  

JJ ;  



39-04-1 8. Motor veh icles exem pt from registration fees - Reciprocal use of state 
h ig hways by foreign l icensed motor vehicles. 

2. The fol lowing motor vehicles may be operated upon the highways, roads, and streets 
of this state without being registered, under such l im itations as are herein specified ; 
provided , however, that whenever the department determi nes that it is to the best 
interest of the state of North Dakota and determines by reciprocal agreement or 
otherwise that as great or greater privi leges are not granted North Dakota residents 
while travel ing in  other states or territories, the department may cancel or l imit the 
appl ication of any exception to residents or motor vehicles from such other state or 
territory: 

o. Passenger motor vehicles, house cars, or pickup trucks not exceeding twenty 
thousand pounds [907 1 . 84 ki lograms] registered gross weight owned and 
operated by a res ident who, while serving in the United States armed forces,  was 
a prisoner of war and has received an honorable d ischarge from the Un ited 
States armed forces; provided , however, that the vehicles d isplay a distinctive 
l icense plate issued by the department upon the payment of five dol lars . This 
exemption also appl ies to any passenger motor vehicle, house car, or pickup 
truck not exceeding twenty thousand pounds [907 1 . 84 ki lograms] registered 
gross weight subsequently purchased or acquired by such a former prisoner of 
war; provided , that the exemption provided by this subdivision is al lowed only 
with respect to one motor vehicle owned by such a former prisoner of war at any 
one time. 

Purple Heart 

There is an initial fee of $ 1 5 .00 ($5 goes to Veterans Cemetery maintenance fund) to receive the 
Veterans' Number plates, with an annual fee thereafter of $ 1 0 .00 ($5.00 goes to Veterans 
Cemetery trust fund and $5 to Veterans Cemetery maintenance fund) .  Personalized Veterans' 
Number plates are an annual fee of $25 .00 in addition to the annual fee of $ 1 0 .00 and the yearly 
l icense fees. 

39-04-1 0.1 0.  North Dakota veterans' number plates. 

1 .  The director may issue distinctive number plates to individuals el ig ible for interment in the 
North Dakota veterans' cemetery . The director shall issue a number plate u nder this section 
upon receiving :  
a .  Payment of a l l  other fees req uired under this chapter for registration of  a motor vehicle; 



b. Payment of an in it ial fee of fifteen dol lars of which ten dol lars is to be deposited in the 
hig hway tax d istribution fund and five dollars is to be deposited in the veterans' cemetery 
maintenance fund;  and 
c. Verification of subsequent payments of an annual surcharge of ten dol lars paid to the adjutant 
genera l .  
2. The department shal l  collect the fees and the ten dollar surcharge under this section .  
The department shal l  report to the legislative assem bly on the funds collected under th is  section 
during each leg islative session.  The department shall pay the funds collected under 
subdivisions b and c of subsection 1 to the adjutant general monthly, who then , with in ten days 
of receipt of the funds, shal l  deposit five dol lars of each initial fee in the veterans' cemetery 
maintenance fund and the ten dollar surcharge shall be divided with five dol lars being deposited 
in the veterans' cemetery trust fund and five dollars being deposited in the veterans' cemetery 
maintenance fund in the state treasury. I nvestment of the fund is the responsib i l ity of the state 
treasurer who shal l  have fu l l  authority to invest the fund only in the same manner as the state 
investment board is authorized to make investments. At the request of the adjutant general ,  the 
interest i n  the veterans' cemetery trust fund must be deposited in the veterans' cemetery 
maintenance fund for the purpose of funding salaries and maintenance of the veterans' 
cemetery. 
3. The veterans' cemetery trust fund may accept funds from private and federal sources. 

Personal ized plates-

**Remove fees for personal ized plates for POW and Gold Star plates. 

39-04-1 0.3.  Personal ized plates. 
The department may,  in its discretion, provide special l icense plates marked with not more than 
seven nu merals, letters, or ampersands, or combinations of n umerals,  letters , and ampersands, 
at the request of the registrant, upon application therefor and, with the exception of POW and 
Gold Star plates, payment of an additional fee of twenty-five dol lars per reg istration period. The 
department shal l  make the special l icense plates authorized by this section available for motor 
vehicles registered under section 39-04-10.6, trai lers, travel trai lers, and m otorcycles. The fee 
for the special l icense plates issued under this section for vehicles registered under section 39-
04-10.6 is a one-t ime fee of one hundred dol lars. The special l icense plates for motorcycles may 
contain  not more than six numerals, letters, or ampersands, or a combination of not more than 
six numerals, letters, and ampersands. In the event of sale or transfer of the vehicle, the owner 
m ust remove the special l icense plates in accordance with section 39-04-36. U pon payment of 
the appl icable transfer fee, the special l icense plates may be transferred to a replacement m otor 
vehicle. 

Add u n-remarried s u rviving spouse to this code?? 

39-04-1 8 .  Motor vehicles exem pt from reg istration fees - Reci p rocal use of state 
h i g hways by fore i g n  l icensed motor vehicles. 

1 .  Except as provided in this section ,  every motor veh icle as d efined in section 
39-0 1 -0 1 , tra i ler  or sem itrai ler designed to be towed by a truck or truck tractor,  
and farm tra i ler operated or intended to be operated upon any h ig hway, roa d ,  or  
street in  this state must be reg istered annual ly with the department.  Any veh icle 
being operated on h ig hways, roads, or streets of this state m ust d isplay l icense 



plates as fu rn ished by the department upon payment of the fees prescribed i n  
t h i s  chapter. Upon satisfactory p roof to the department that a motor veh icle 
owned by a resident of this state was not used upon a ny of the h ighways of this 
state in  any one or more years ,  the motor vehicle may be reg istered u pon 
payment of the registration fee for the cu rrent year. Any resident of the state of 
North Dakota , serving in the armed forces of the U n ited States for a period of 
t ime greater than o ne year, may rel icense any motor veh icle owned by the 
veteran without paying any fee or penalties for the i ntervening years when the 
veh icle was not l icensed , provid ing the veteran shows by su itable affidavit that 
the vehicle was not in use d u ri ng any year in which it was not l icensed . 
The veh i cle must be l icensed for the l icense fee appl ica b le to the month of the 
year in  which appl ication for l icense is made. 

2. The fol lowing motor vehicles may be operated u pon the h ig hways , roads,  and 
streets of  th is  state without be ing registered , u nder such l im itations as are here i n  
specified ; provided , however, that whenever the department determ ines that i t  is  
to the best i nterest of the state of North Dakota and determi nes by reciprocal 
agreement or otherwise that as g reat or greater privi leges are not gra nted North 
Dakota residents whi le travel ing in  other states or territories , the department 

may cancel or l im it the appl ication of any exception to residents or motor veh icles 
from such other state or territory: 

j. Motor veh icles not exceed ing twenty-six thousand pounds [ 1 1 793.40 ki lograms] 
reg istered gross wei g ht owned and operated by a d isabled veteran u nder the provis ions 
of Publ ic  Law 79-663 [38 U . S . C .  390 1 ] , a  former prisoner of war, a d isabled veteran who 
has a one hundred percent service-con nected d isabi l ity as determi ned by the 
d epartment of veterans' affa irs, or a d isabled veteran who has an extra-sched u lar rat ing 
to i nclude i nd ivid ual  u nemployabi l ity that brings the veteran's total d isabi l ity rating to one 
h u ndred percent as d etermi ned by the department of veterans' affairs is  entitled to 
d isplay a d isti nctive l icense plate issued by the department upon the payment of a fee of 
five dol lars .  An unremarriedsurviving spouse who is receiving department of veterans' affai rs 
dependency and indemnitycompensation reta ins the exemption of the deceased, qual ifying 
veteran in this subsection. This exemption appl ies to no more than two s uch motor 
veh icles owned by a d isabled veteran at any one time. 



Veterans License Plate Fees-Reduced 

NDCC: 39-04- 1 0 . 1 4 . ; 39-04- 1 8(2) (o) ;39-04- 1 0 . 1 0 ; 39-04- 1 0 .3  
Origination of Bill: Representative Gary Paur, NDDVA, ACOVA 
Approved by ACOVA: June 29 20 1 2  
Approved by NDVCC : June 28, 20 1 2  

1 .  2 12-0940: Friday 3 : 1 1PM Representative Gary Paur Vete rans plates a n d  costs- take a look at 

t hose to see what we could get waived, gold sta r, p u rple hea rt, vanity etc. put togeth e r  and 

b ring to ACOVA. Be h a p py to sponsor the b i l l .  

a .  Go ld  Star 

i. Remove fees for having this p late 

1 .  ( lost a loved one-paid enough) 

i i .  Remove fee for person a l ized plates 

1. ( usual ly the service mem bers name or info) 

b. POW 

c. DAV 

i. No fees. 

1. ( paid enough as a POW) 

i i .  Remove fee for perso nal ized plates 

1. ( usual ly something to do with the ir  POW time) 

i .  U n  rema rried spouse to continue plate 

1. ( less income now- retain ing plate will be beneficia l )  

d .  P u rple Heart 

i .  Al low 100% Disabled to have P u rple heart p late if q u a l ified 

1 .  (some purple heart recipients a re 100% disabled a lso- could  have the  

free DAV p lates or pay for the P urple heart p lates- s imply  a l lowing the  

pu rple heart to be  on the  DAV p late) 

i i .  Fees t h e  same a s  DAV plates 



De l ete : 

Page 4, L ines 8 to 10:  

A m e n d m e nt 
H B  1205 

R e p .  G a ry Pa u r  

1 1A I n  a d d it ion, a former prisoner of  wa r is e ntit led to a d ecal  provided fo r a N o rth 

Da kota vete ra n • s  l i ce n se pl ate fo r pl acement on a pri s o n e r  o f  wa r n u m be r  plate a t  

n o  c h a rge. 1 1 

De lete : 

Page 4, Li nes 1 1  to 1 2 :  

1 1 a n d  i s  receiving d epa rtment of vetera n • s  affa i rs d epe n d e n cy a n d  i n d e m n ity 

compe nsation I I  



Good Morning, My name is NATHAN GOODIRON. I a m  a Viet Nam Veteran 
3 

m here today to ask you r  support of H B  1205. To my knowledge this Bi l l  would only affect 

ving "Gold Star" el igible participants of a l l  soldiers ki l led in  action in  defense of our great 

Country in  past and present Wars or conflicts. 

I do not bel ieve there a re surviving el igible Gold Sta r Pa rents from WWII but there may be 

some Brothers/Sisters and possibly some chi ldren sti l l  a l ive but would be in the u pper 80's 

age. 

I can only speculate that from the Korean War Gold Star Parents would be in the u pper 90's of 

age or older. Any surviving Brothers/Sisters would be i n . their upper 80's. Any surviving 

chi ldren would be in  their upper 70's and this number State-wide would  be smal l .  

The Vietnam War sold iers ki l led in  action may have some parents a l ive but i n  th is a rea have a l l  

passed o n .  There a re some, few, surviving Brothers/Sisters a l ive who would b e  i n  their middle 

60's a nd a bove. And there a re/is one from this  area. 

from I raq/ Afghanistan/Persian Gulf soldiers ki l led in  action these figures can be easi ly 

obtai ned from the Department of Transportation Motor Vehicle Department of those who 

received Gold Star license Plates. 

To summarize, the effect of non-revenue from Gold Star fees would be min iscu le and the 

Honor accorded survivors of those who gave the "Ultimate Sacrifice" would be immeasura ble .  

I lost two brothers i n  Viet Nam Ronald "Christy'' Good Iron a nd Myron Johnson. I ca n directly 

relate to the "silent unrecognized loss" carried through the years afterwards 

As a Father, I lost my son NATHAN J. GOODIRON, ki l led i n  action Than ksgiving Day 2006 i n  

Afghan istan .  If  m y  son was a ble to b e  here, h e  would probable say "Dad, everyone should be 

treated the same. They died defending our Country too". 

THAN K YOU FOR TAKING TH E TIM E  TO H EAR MY WORDS. 

AN PAU L GOODIRON 



HOUSE TRANSPORTATION COMMITTEE 

January 31 5\ 2013 - 9:00 a.m. - Fort Totten 

North Dakota Department of Transportation 

Linda Sitz, Director of Motor Vehicle Division 

House Bill 1205 

Mr. Chairman and members of the committee - I 'm Linda Sitz, Director of the Motor Vehicle 
Division at the North Dakota Department of Transportation (DOT). Thank you for giving me the 
opportunity to present information to you today. 

Before DOT testifies we would like to acknowledge the sacrifices of our veterans and thank 
them for defending the freedoms some of us may take for granted. 

This bill changes two things. First it removes the requirement of paying twenty-five dollars for 
a Special Letter Plate if it is a Gold Star or Prisoner of War (POW) plate. It also provides that 
we now offer a Special Letter Plate (up to 7 characters) for a POW plate. DOT believes we can 
make this change and allow 7 characters on POW plates; these plates would then compete with 
all other Special Letter Plates for availability. The normal cost of a POW plate is $5 which 
includes their registration fee .  Currently DOT has 24 POW plates with active registrations. 

The initial time a Gold Star plate is ordered the cost is $ 1 5 :  $ 1  0 goes into the highway tax 
distribution fund and $5  dollars is deposited in the veteran cemetery maintenance fund. 
Thereafter the $ 1 0  fee is divided equally between the veteran's  cemetery fund and the veteran's  
cemetery maintenance fund. If this bill passes these fees would end as there will no longer be a 
fee for the plates. 

As of today, we have 54 citizens holding a Gold Star plate, of which 45 are Special Letter Plates. 
Since the Gold Star bill was enacted $640 has gone into the funds discussed above. 

The second change in the bill affects yearly registration fees for disabled veterans. This bill 
would extend to all 1 00% disabled veterans who are displaying any type of veteran' s  license 
plate the same privileges as a DA V designated plate. Under current law, disabled veterans are 
exempt from excise tax for the first two vehicles. When one displays the DA V on their vehicle, 
they pay no excise tax and only $5/year to renew their registrations. If a disabled veteran has a 
plate other than a DA V plate, they still pay no excise tax, but do pay a yearly registration. This 
bill would take the yearly registration fees for the DAV plate and any type of Veterans plates (for 
disabled veteran applicants) to $0. It is up the Veterans Affairs office to determine which 
veterans get this privilege. Under certain circumstances, the surviving spouse would maintain 
this privilege on one vehicle. 

This bill would also take the yearly registration fees for both a POW plate and any type of 
Veterans plate (for POW applicants) to $0. These applicants would be able to use this privilege 



on no more than two vehicles and a surviving spouse would be able to use it on one vehicle. 
These are the current guidelines for the DA V plate. 

There is some uncertainty with the word decal on page 4 line 9. Does this mean the insignia logo 
of the various branches of the military that currently appear on license or the annual registration 
decal? 

There is a new bill SB2326 which states the director shall issue a new general plate in the next 
biennium. This bill change if passed would replace the buffalo plate. All organizational plates 
will need to be recreated. 

There is a fiscal note attached to this bill .  

Thank you, Mr. Chairman, I would be happy to  answer any questions. 



H B  1205 Testi mony 

Senate Transportation Comm ittee 

Friday, March 8th, 2013 

Representative Gary Paur 

For the record I am Representative G a ry Paur, prime sponsor of HB 1205, and I a m  from District 19. 

In  the i nterim I was a pproached by two people relative ly close together time w i s e  but on o pposite ends 

of my d i strict com pla in ing a bout the charges for veteran plates. This struck me a s  rather u n usual  and 

prompted me to contact Lonnie Wangen, Com missioner of Veteran Affa irs, to s e e  if there was a nything 

reasona ble we could do about this. Commissioner Wangen took my request to t h e  N o rth Dakota 

Veteran Coord i nating Council ( NDVCC) a nd the Ad min istrative Committee on Vetera n  Affa irs (ACOVA). 

What you have in House Bil l 1205 is basica l ly their recommendations. 

The b i l l  rem oves the extra fees for the "Gold Star", " P risoner of War", and " D isa b l ed American Veteran" 

l icense p lates. The fees were modest and some of the money went to support the maintena nce of the 

vetera n 's  cemetery but with what these three gro u ps had a l ready paid the fees d i d  seem excessive and 

un necessa ry .  Gold Sta r plates are given to surviving fam ily mem bers of someone killed in  action .  

Prisoner  of  War p lates are for those who were prisoners of  wa r d u ring a confl ict a nd received an  

honora ble disc h a rge.  Disabled America n Veteran p lates are for those who are 100% disabled as a result 

of service in the a rm ed forces. 

This bi l l  was sent to the ND Adjutant Gene ra l  a nd their  reply was: " ... we solidly stand behind the intent 

of the b i l ls a nd wi l l  make concessions to make up the reven ues lost through oth e r  avenues."  

These sold ie rs a n d  their  fami l ies have paid e no ugh and I ask for your favorable r e co m m e ndation of this 

bi l l .  



Department of Veterans Affairs: Gold Star License Plates 

Gold Sta r licen se Plates 

The d i rector ( DOT) m a y  issue d isti n ctive n u m ber p lates to a s u rviving s pouse, pa rent, 

i n cl u d i n g  stepmother,  stepfather, pa re nt th roug h a d o pt ion,  a nd foster p a rent who sta n d s  or 

stood i n  loco p a re ntis,  g ra n d p a re nts, c h i l d ,  i n cl u d i n g  stepch i ld  and ch i l d  t h ro u g h  a d o pti o n ,  a n d  

s i b l i n g ,  i n c l u d i n g  ha l f- b rother a n d  ha lf-sister, o f  a m e m be r  o f  the a rmed forces o f  the U n i ted 

States who d i e d  w h i l e  serving on active d u ty d u ri n g  a time of m i l itary co nfl i ct .  

Payment of a n  i n i ti a l  fee of fiftee n  d o l l a rs, of wh ich ten d o l l a rs is to be d e posited i n  the 

h i g hway tax d istri b u t i o n  fu nd and five d o l l a rs is to be de pos ited in the v etera ns' cemetery 

m a i nte n a n ce fu n d .  

O n e  set o f  p l ates m a y  b e  issued to a n  e l i g i ble fa m i ly m e m ber.  

Perso na l ized p l ates 

A q u a l ified a p p l i ca nt m ay ch oose a perso n a l i zed p l ate not exceed i ng a tota l of five ( 5 )  

cha racters a n d  spaces.  Th is req u i res a fee o f  $ 2 5  p e r  year i n  a d d ition t o  the vete ra n p l a te fee 

and the a n n u a l  reg istration fee .  

C h e c k  ava i l a b i l ity of pe rsonal ized plate 

How to a p p l y :  

• Co m p lete fo rm : S F N  5 9 1 8 3  Appl i cation fo r N o rth Da kota Gold Sta r  Plate 

• I ncl u d e  d ocu m e n tatio n : 

o P ro of of S e rv ice m e m bers' death w h i l e  serv i n g  o n  active d uty d u ri n g  a t i m e  of 

m i l ita ry confl i ct 

o P roof of s u rvivors q u a l ify i n g  re lations h i p  O b itua ry,  b i rth ce rtificates, m a rr iage 

l ice nse,  etc . 

• M a i l  to : 

o N O - De p a rt m e nt of Vetera ns Affa i rs 

4 2 0 1  38th St .  SW Ste . 1 04 

PO Box 9 0 0 3  Fa rg o N D  5 8 1 06-9003 

U po n  a pp rova l of the N O- D epa rtment of Veterans Affa i rs the a p p l icatio n w i l l  be s ig ned a n d  

m a i led back to the a p p l icant.  The a p p l icant w i l l  t h e n  need t o  s u b m it t h e  a p p l ication t o  the 

DOT with p a y m e nt .  M oto r Veh icle S ite 

N DCC 39-04- 1 0 . 1 4 .  N o rth Da kota Gold Sta r n u m ber p l ates 

� .  I 1 1 , ., /0 /') f"\ 1  ") 



Department of Veterans Affairs : Prisoner of War License Plates 

Prisoner of Wa r Lice n se Plates 

POW 1 
To be e l i g i ble the Vetera n's  Affa i rs Office m u st certify the a ppl ica nt w a s  a P ri so n e r  of W a r. 

S FN 2872 Appl i cation for Certificate of Title fo rm m ust be comp leted , s i g ned,  a nd retu rned 

w i th the c e rtificati o n  letter and a n n ua l  $ 5 . 00 l i cense fee .  

Q u a l i fi ed vete ra ns a re e l i g i b le for o n e  (excise tax) exe m pt veh icle l i ce nsed with a POW l icense 

p late at a t ime.  P lates may n ot be d isp layed o n  a vehic le  with a g ross w e i g ht equal  to o r  

exceed i n g  1 0 , 000 l bs .  

U po n  t h e  d e a t h  o f  a fo rmer prisoner o f  w a r ,  t h e  s u rv iv i n g  spouse may e l ect t o  reta i n  the P O W  

plates for their  own use u nt i l  s u c h  t i m e  as they re ma rry. However, t h e  s u rviv ing spouse i s  n ot 

e ntitled to the specia l  reg istration rate for fo rmer p rison ers of war .  The s u rvivi n g  spouse m u st 

contact the Motor Veh icle D ivision to determine the correct reg i stration fees d u e .  With i n  3 0  

days o f  re m a rr iage t h e  s u rviv ing spouse m u st s u rrender t h e  p lates to t h e  M otor Vehic le 

D ivisi o n .  If  req u este d ,  a free com memorative p l a q ue wi l l  be i ssued by t h e  d iv is ion as a 

keepsake for the fa m i ly .  

M o re I n fo rmation 

N DCC 39-04- 1 0 . 5 .  P riso ner of wa r pl ates - Tra nsfer to ce rta i n  s u rvivi n g  spouses 

r" • I _ 1 _ .._ _  L ... ___ 1 '1 /0 /') f\ 1 ') 



Department of Veterans Affairs:  Disabled American Veteran License Plates 

Disa bled American Vetera n License Plates 

To be e l i g i b le the Department of Vete ra n Affa i rs office m u st s i g n  a l ette r sta t i n g  the a p p l i ca nt 

is 1 00 percent service rel a ted d isabled o r  attest ing e l i g i b i l ity u nd e r  P u b l ic Law 663 of the 79th 

Cong ress. 

The S FN 2 8 7 2  Appl ication for Ce rtifi cate of Title form m u st be co m p leted , s i g ned,  a nd 

retu rned w ith the certificat ion lette r a n d  a n n u a l  $ 5 . 0 0 l i cense fee .  

Q u a l i fied vete ra ns a re e l i g i b le for two ( excise tax) exem pt veh icles l i ce n sed w i t h  t h e  DAV 

l icense p late at a t i m e .  P lates may n ot be d isp layed on a veh icle with a g ross wei g ht e q u a l  to 

or exceed i n g  26, 000 l bs .  

A s u rv iv ing spouse ca n not reta i n  t h e  DAV p lates fo r the ir  own use. 

D isabled A m e rica n Veteran M o b i l ity I m pa i red Plates To be e l i g i ble a n  a p p l icant m u st q u a l ify 

u n d e r  both the DAV a nd M o b i l ity I m pa i red q u a l ificati ons.  

Exem pted 

N DCC 39-04- 1 8  (2) (j) .  M oto r veh icles e xe m pt from reg istration fees - Reci p roca l use o f  state 

h i g hways by fore i g n  l icen sed motor veh icles . 

j .  M oto r v e h i cles n ot excee d i n g  twe nty-s ix thousa n d  pou nds [ 1 1 79 3 . 4 0  k i l o g ra ms] reg iste red 

g ross we i g h t  owned a n d o p e rated by a d isab led vetera n u n d e r  the prov i s i o ns of Pu b l ic Law 

79-663 [ 3 8  U . S . C .  390 1 ]  or who has a one h u n d red percent service-co n nected d isa b i l ity as 

dete r m i ne d  by the d e pa rtment of vetera ns' a ffa i rs who is  enti tled to d i s p l ay a d i st i n ctive 

l i cense p late issued by the d e pa rtment u po n  the payment of a fee of five d o l l a rs .  Th is 

exem ptio n  a p p l i es to no m o re than two such m oto r veh i cles owned by a d is a b led vete ra n at 

a ny one t i m e .  

M o re i nfo rmation :  Disa bled A m e ri ca n  Vete ra n ( DAV) Plates 
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SENATE TRANSPORTATION COMMITTEE 
March 8th, 2013 - 1 0 :30 a.m. - Lewis and Clark 

North Dakota Department of Transportation 

Linda Sitz, Director of Motor Vehicle Division 

House Bill 1205 

Mr. Chairman and members of the committee - I'm Linda Sitz, Director of the Motor Vehicle 
Division at the North Dakota Department of Transportation (DOT). Thank you for giving me the 

opportunity to present information to you today. 

Before DOT testifies we would like to acknowledge the sacrifices of our veterans and thank 
them for defending the freedoms some of us may take for granted. 

This bill changes two things. First it removes the requirement of paying twenty-five dollars for 
a Special Letter Plate if it is a Gold Star or Prisoner of War (POW) plate. It also provides that 
we now offer a Special Letter Plate (up to 7 characters) for a POW plate. DOT believes we can 
make this change and allow 7 characters on POW plates; these plates would then compete with 
all other Special Letter Plates for availability. The normal cost of a POW plate is $ 5  which 
includes their registration fee. Currently DOT has 24 POW plates with active registrations. 

The initial time a Gold Star plate is ordered the cost is $ 1 5 : $ 1  0 goes into the highway tax 
distribution fund and $5 dollars is deposited in the veteran cemetery maintenance fund. 
Thereafter the $ 1 0  fee is divided equally between the veteran' s cemetery fund and the veteran's 
cemetery maintenance fund. If this bill passes these fees would end as there will  no longer be a 
fee for the plates. 

As of today, we have 54 citizens holding a Gold Star plate, of which 45 are Special Letter Plates. 
Since the Gold Star bill was enacted $640 has gone into the funds discussed above. 

The second change the bill affects is the removal ofthe fee of five dollars for the distinctive 
license plate (DA V plate) . The bill also allows the surviving not remarried spouse of a former 
prisoner of war to retain the exemption of the deceased veteran. 

In the DOT appropriations bill SB2326 was added which stated the director shall issue a new 
general plate in the next biennium. This bill change if passed would replace the buffalo plate. 
All organizational plates will need to be recreated. 

There is a fiscal note attached to this HB 1 205 bill. 

Thank you, Mr. Chairman, I would be happy to answer any questions. 
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Prepared by the Legislative Council staff for 
Representative G ruchal la 

March 20, 201 3 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO ENGROSSED HOUSE B I LL NO.  1 205 

Page 1 ,  l ine 1 ,  after "Act" insert "to create and enact a new section to chapter 39-04 of the 
North Dakota Century Code, relating to patriotic logos on num be r  plates;" 

Page 1 ,  l ine 3, after "veterans" insert "; and to provide an appropriation" 

Page 4,  after line 5, insert: 

"SECTION 4. A new section to chapter 39-04 of the North Dakota Century Code is 
created and enacted as fol lows: 

Patriotic logos . 

.L The d irector shall  issue four patriotic logos under this section upon 
receiving: 

a .  Payment of al l  other fees required under this chapter for registration of 
a motor vehicle; 

b.  Paym ent of an in itial fee of twenty dol lars of which the department 
shal l  deposit fifteen dollars in  the h ighway tax d istribution fund and 
pay five dol lars to the state treasurer; and 

c. Payment of an  annual surcharge of ten dol lars which the department 
shal l  pay to the state treasurer. 

2.  The department shall  collect the initial fees and the annual surcharges 
u nder this section.  The department shall report to the legislative assembly 
on the funds collected under this section during each legislative session . 
For funds payable to the state treasurer under subdivisions b and c of 
subsection 1, the department shall pay the funds monthly to the state 
treasurer, who within  ten days of receipt of the funds, shal l  deposit five 
dol lars of each in itial fee and the annual surcharge in  the veterans' postwar 
trust fund to be added to the principal of the fund. The state treasurer shall 
i nvest the fund in  the same manner as the state investm ent board is 
authorized to make investments. 

SECTION 5. APPROPRIATION. There is appropriated out of any moneys in the 
general fund in the state treasury, not otherwise appropriated, the sum of $9,000, or so 
m uch of the sum as m ay be necessary, to the department of transportation for the 
purpose of issuing patriotic logos as provided for under section 4 of this Act, for the 
biennium beginning J u ly 1 ,  201 3, and ending June 30, 201 5." 

Renumber accordingly 

Page No. 1 1 3 . 0296. 03002 



Prepared by Legislative Intern Justin Hagel 
Senator Flakol l 

March 28, 20 1 3  

PROPOSED AMENDMENT TO HOUSE BILL NO. 1 205 

On Page 4, l ine 5 ,  after "vehicle" insert the fol lowing: 

SECTION 4 

APPRO PRIATI ON. 

There is appropriated out of any moneys in the general fund in the state treasury, not otherwise 
appropriated, the sum of $3,5 00 or so much of the sum as may be necessary, to the veterans 
cemetery trust fund and veterans cemetery maintenance fund established under section 39-04-
1 0.6 by the adjutant general for the purpose of providing special l icense plates authorized for 
motor vehicles registered to a veteran who would otherwise be provided a special l icense plate. 

Renumber accordingly 
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Prepared by the Legislative Council staff for 
Representative Gruchal la 

March 20,  201 3 

PROPOSED AME N DMENTS TO ENGROSSED HOUSE BILL NO.  1 205 

Page 1 , l ine 1 ,  after "Act" insert "to create and enact a new section to chapter 39-04 of the 
North Dakota Century Code, relating to patriotic logos on number plates;" 

Page 1 ,  l ine 3, after "veterans" insert "; and to provide an appropriation" 

Page 4,  after l ine 5, insert: 

"SECTION 4. A new section to chapter 39-04 of the North Dakota Century Code is 
created and enacted as follows: 

Patriotic logos . 

.1. The d irector shal l  issue four patriotic logos under this section upon 
receiving: 

g_,_ Payment of al l  other fees required under this chapter for registration of 
a motor vehicle; 

tL Payment of an in itial fee of twenty dollars of which the department 
shal l  deposit fifteen dol lars in the highway tax d istribution fund and 
pay five dol lars to the state treasurer; and 

c. Payment of an annual surcharge of ten dollars which the department 
shal l  pay to the state treasurer. 

2.  The department shall collect the in itial fees and the a n nual surcharges 
under this section.  The department shall  report to the legislative assembly 
on the funds collected under this section during each legislative session .  
For funds payable to the state treasurer under subd ivisions b and c of 
subsection 1 ,  the department shall pay the funds m o nthly to the state 
treasurer, who with in ten days of receipt of the funds, shal l  deposit five 
dol lars of each in itial fee and the annual surcharge i n  the veterans' postwar 
trust fund to be added to the principal of the fund.  The state treasurer shall 
invest the fund in the same manner as the state investment board is 
authorized to make investments. 

SECTI O N  5. APPROPRIATION. There is appropriated out of any moneys in the 
general fund in the state treasury, not otherwise appropriated, the sum of $9,000 , or so 
much of the sum as may be necessary, to the department of transportation for the 
purpose of issuing patriotic logos as provided for under section 4 of this Act, for the 
biennium beg inning Ju ly  1 ,  201 3, and ending June 30, 20 1 5 . "  

Renumber accordingly 

Page No. 1 1 3 . 0296.03002 



V igesaa, Donald W. 

F rom: 

Sent: 
To: 

Cc: 
Subject: 

Representative Vigesaa :  

Larson, Brady A.  
Tuesday, April 1 6, 201 3 1 2:09 PM 
Vigesaa, Donald W. 
Knudson, Allen H .  
Veterans Cemetery Fund Balances 

� [  

Pursuant to your req uest, the current fund bala nces of the veterans cemetery t rust fund a n d  the veterans cemetery 

maintena nce fund a re l isted below: 

Veterans cemetery trust fund :  $213,808 
Vetera ns cemetery maintena nce fund :  $379,390 

Please contact me with any q uestions. 

B rady 



ND VETERANS CEM ETERY MAINTENANCE ACCOUNT 

BIENNIAL BUDG ET PROJ ECTIONS 
201 1 - 201 3 BIENNIUM 

ACTUAL 

TO DATE 

3/31 /201 3 

BEGIN NING CASH BALANCE 7/1 /1 1  $ 1 58 ,589.32 $ 

REVENUES: 

G RAVE CLOSI N G  & OPEN I NG FEES (SPOUSES) $ 1 31 , 700.00 $ 
FEDERAL BURIAL REVENUE $ 289 ,400 . 00 $ 
FEDERAL GRANT REVENUE $ 355, 1 1 5 .06 $ 
VETERANS CEMETERY FOU N DATION DONATIONS $ $ 
M ISCELLAN EOUS REVENUE $ 1 02 .27 $ 
I NTEREST FROM VET CEM LICENSE PLATE FUND $ $ 
L ICENSE PLATE SALES $ 35,635.00 $ 
APPROPRIATED GEN ERAL FUNDS ** $ 328 ,21 6 .00 $ 

TOTAL INCOME $ 1 ,1 40,1 68.33 $ 
EXPEN DITURES: 

SALARIES $ 436,639.65 $ 

SALARY EXPENSE $ 436,639 .65 $ 
OPERATIONS: 

UTILITIES $ 38, 353. 1 0  $ 
TELEPHONE $ 3,706.75 $ 
TRAVEL $ 2 ,001 .30 $ 
GROU NDS MAINTENANCE CONTRACT $ 7,365.65 $ 
REPAI RS $ 75,444.81  $ 
ELECTRICAL SITE I MPROVEM ENTS PROJ ECT #1 303 $ 8 ,593 .55 $ 
S IDEWALK REPLACEMENT PROJECT #1 305 $ $ 
VEH ICLE FUEL $ 9 , 1 47.61  $ 
IT EQU I P MENT/SOFTWARE $ 7 ,873.23 $ 
EQU I PM ENT RENT $ 903 .50 $ 
M I SCELLAN EOUS SERVICES (SEPTI C, SOD HAULING,  KIOSK ETC) $ 429. 1 2  $ 
D U ES AN D M EM BERSH I PS $ $ 
I N SU RANCE $ 1 ,603.29 $ 
OFFICE SUPPLIES $ 1 , 377.76 $ 
JAN ITORIAL $ 1 , 544. 1 2  $ 
TOOLS $ 1 ,999 .00 $ 
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES $ 457.25 $ 
GRAVE REALIGNM ENT PROJ ECT (FEDERAL FUNDED GRANT) $ 355, 1 1 5 .06 $ 
U N I FORMS/SAFETY CLOTH ING $ 1 ,472 .90 $ 
M ISCELLANEOUS SUPPLIES $ 1 1 , 584. 04 $ 

OPERATIONS EXPENSE $ 528,972.04 $ 
ENDING BIENNIUM PROJ ECTED BALANCE - 6/30/201 3 I $ 

B I E N N IAL 

PROJ ECTIONS 

1 58 ,589.32 

1 40 ,000.00 
325,000.00 
355, 1 1 5 .06 

200 .00 
5,000 .00 

41 ,000.00 
328,2 1 6 .00 

1 '1 94,531 .06 

51 1 ,700.00 

51 1 ,700.00 

50,000.00 
4,400.00 
4,000.00 

1 1 ,000. 00 
79, 000 .00 
79,940.00 

1 29,025.00 
1 2 ,000.00 

8, 500.00 
2 ,000. 00 
2 ,000 .00 

200.00 
1 ,603.29 
1 ,600.00 
2 ,000.00 
2 , 500.00 
1 , 000.00 

355, 1 1 5 .06 
2,200.00 

1 5, 000.00 

763 ,083 .35 

78,337.03 1 
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Title. 

Prepared by the Legislative Council staff for 
Senator G. Lee 

April5, 2013 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO ENGROSSED HOUSE BILL NO. 1205 

In lieu of the amendments adopted by the Senate as printed on pages 969 and 970 of the 
Senate Journal, Engrossed House Bill No. 1205 is amended as follows: 

Page 1, line 2, after "number" insert "license" 

Page 4, after line 5,  insert: 

"SECTION 4. APPROPRIATION. There is appropriated out of any moneys in 
the general fund in the state treasury, not otherwise appropriated, the sum of $3,500, or 
so much of the sum as may be necessary, to the adjutant general to be divided equally 
between the veterans' cemetery trust fund and the veterans' cemetery maintenance 
fund, for the biennium beginning July 1, 2013, and ending June 30, 2015." 

Renumber accordingly 

Page No. 1 13.0296.03005 
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NORTH DA KOTA VETERANS COORDINATING COUNCIL 

My name is John Jacobsen. I am a member of the Legis lat ive 

Committee of the North Dakota Veterans Coord inating 

Counc i l .  The Coordinating Counc i l  is made up of 15 members , 3 
f rom each of the five veterans' o rganizations i n  North Dakota. 

American Legion 

AM VETS 

Disabled American Veterans 

Veterans of Foreign Wars 

Vietnam Veterans of America 

It is the po l icy of the Coordinating Counc i l  to suppo rt 

l eg is lation that wi l l  benef it the welfare of the members of 

the A rmed Forces. The committee MUST concur total ly, that 

is a l l  15 members must agree on the legis lation to be 

supported or e lse it does not get the support. 

In this case, I have been i nstructed to recommend to this 

legis lat ive committee that a " DO PASS" on  HB 1205 , as 

amended , is supported by the Veterans Coord inating Counci l .  




